

Journal of the Senate

FRIDAY, MAY 8, 2015

The Senate was called to order by the President.

Devotional Exercises

A moment of silence was observed in lieu of devotions.

Message from the Governor Appointments Referred

A message was received from the Governor, by Susan Allen, Secretary of Civil and Military Affairs, submitting the following appointments, which were referred to committees as indicated:

Lees, Robert of White River Junction - Member of the Vermont State Housing Authority, - from April 28, 2015, to February 28, 2018.

To the Committee on Economic Development, Housing & General Affairs.

Murray, Rilla of Montpelier - Member of the Human Services Board, - from April 28, 2015, to February 28, 2021.

To the Committee on Health & Welfare.

Bill Referred

House bill of the following title was read the first time and referred:

H. 355.

An act relating to licensing and regulating foresters.

To the Committee on Rules.

Proposals of Amendment; Bill Passed in Concurrence with Proposal of Amendment

H. 361.

House bill entitled:

An act relating to making amendments to education funding, education spending, and education governance.

Was taken up.

Thereupon, pending third reading of the bill, Senator Rodgers moved to amend the Senate proposal of amendment as follows:

First: By adding a reader assistance heading and two new sections to be numbered Secs. 34a–34c to read as follows:

* * * Education Property Tax Rate Incentives * * *

Sec. 34a. 16 V.S.A. § 4001 is amended to read:

§ 4001. DEFINITIONS

As used in this chapter:

* * *

(6) “Education spending” means the amount of the school district budget, any assessment for a joint contract school, career technical center payments made on behalf of the district under subsection 1561(b) of this title, and any amount added to pay a deficit pursuant to 24 V.S.A. § 1523(b) that is paid for by the school district, but excluding any portion of the school budget paid for from any other sources such as endowments, parental fund raising, federal funds, nongovernmental grants, or other State funds such as special education funds paid under chapter 101 of this title.

* * *

(B) ~~For purposes of calculating excess spending pursuant to 32 V.S.A. § 5401(12), “education spending” shall not include:~~

~~(i) Spending during the budget year for approved school capital construction for a project that received preliminary approval under section 3448 of this title, including interest paid on the debt; provided the district shall not be reimbursed or otherwise receive State construction aid for the approved school capital construction.~~

~~(ii) For a project that received final approval for State construction aid under chapter 123 of this title:~~

~~(I) spending for approved school capital construction during the budget year that represents the district’s share of the project, including interest paid on the debt;~~

~~(II) payment during the budget year of interest on funds borrowed under subdivision 563(21) of this title in anticipation of receiving State aid for the project.~~

~~(iii) Spending that is approved school capital construction spending or deposited into a reserve fund under 24 V.S.A. § 2804 to pay future approved school capital construction costs, including that portion of tuition paid to an independent school designated as the public high school of the school district pursuant to section 827 of this title for capital construction costs by the independent school that has received approval from the State Board of~~

~~Education, using the processes for preliminary approval of public school construction costs pursuant to subdivision 3448(a)(2) of this title.~~

~~(iv) Spending attributable to the cost of planning the merger of a small school, which for purposes of this subdivision means a school with an average grade size of 20 or fewer students, with one or more other schools.~~

~~(v) Spending attributable to the district's share of special education spending in excess of \$50,000.00 for any one student in the fiscal year occurring two years prior.~~

~~(vi) A budget deficit in a district that pays tuition to a public school or an approved independent school or both for all of its resident students in any year in which the deficit is solely attributable to tuition paid for one or more new students who moved into the district after the budget for the year creating the deficit was passed.~~

~~(vii) For a district that pays tuition for all of its resident students and into which additional students move after the end of the census period defined in subdivision (1)(A) of this section, the number of students that exceeds the district's most recent average daily membership and for whom the district will pay tuition in the subsequent year multiplied by the district's average rate of tuition paid in that year.~~

~~(viii) Tuition paid by a district that does not operate a school and pays tuition for all resident students in kindergarten through grade 12, except in a district in which the electorate has authorized payment of an amount higher than the statutory rate pursuant to subsection 823(b) or 824(c) of this title.~~

~~(ix) The assessment paid by the employer of teachers who become members of the State Teachers' Retirement System of Vermont on or after July 1, 2015, pursuant to section 1944d of this title. [Repealed.]~~

Sec. 34b. 32 V.S.A. § 5401 is amended to read:

§ 5401. DEFINITIONS

As used in this chapter:

* * *

(12) "Excess spending" means:

~~(A) The per-equalized pupil amount of the district's education spending, as defined in 16 V.S.A. § 4001(6), plus any amount required to be added from a Capital Construction Reserve Fund under 24 V.S.A. § 2804(b).~~

~~(B) In excess of 123 percent of the statewide average district education spending per equalized pupil increased by inflation, as determined~~

~~by the Secretary of Education on or before November 15 of each year based on the passed budgets to date. As used in this subdivision, "increased by inflation" means increasing the statewide average district education spending per equalized pupil for fiscal year 2014 by the most recent New England Economic Project cumulative price index, as of November 15, for state and local government purchases of goods and services, from fiscal year 2014 through the fiscal year for which the amount is being determined.~~

(A) "Excess spending" means 25 percent of the per-equalized-pupil amount of the district's education spending, as defined in 16 V.S.A. § 4001(6), that is in excess of the statewide per pupil spending amount from the prior fiscal year.

(B) "Lower spending" means 25 percent of the difference between the statewide per pupil spending amount from the prior fiscal year minus the actual per-equalized-pupil amount of the district's education spending, as defined in 16 V.S.A. § 4001(6).

(13) "District spending adjustment" means the greater of: one or a fraction in which the numerator is the district's education spending per equalized pupil, plus excess spending or minus lower spending, per equalized pupil, for the school year; and the denominator is the base education amount for the school year, as defined in 16 V.S.A. § 4001. For a district that pays tuition to a public school or an approved independent school, or both, for all of its resident students in any year and which has decided by a majority vote of its school board to opt into this provision, the district spending adjustment shall be the average of the district spending adjustment calculated under this subdivision for the previous year and for the current year. Any district opting for a two-year average under this subdivision may not opt out of such treatment, and the averaging shall continue until the district no longer qualifies for such treatment.

* * *

(15) "Statewide per pupil spending amount" means an amount equal to the statewide average education spending per equalized pupil in fiscal year 2016, increased in successive fiscal years by the most recent New England Economic Project Cumulative Price Index, as of November 15 of each year, for State and local government purchases of goods and services from fiscal year 2016 through the fiscal year for which the statewide per pupil spending amount is being determined.

Sec. 34c. REPEALS

The following are repealed:

(1) 2014 Acts and Resolves No.174, Sec. 60.

(2) 2013 Acts and Resolves No. 60, Sec. 2.

Second: In Sec. 39 (effective dates), by inserting a subdivision (cc) to read as follows:

(cc) Secs. 34a (Title 16 definitions), 34b (Title 32 definitions), and 34c (repeals) shall take effect on July 1, 2015, and apply to fiscal year 2017 and forward.

Thereupon, pending the question, Shall the Senate proposal of amendment be amended as proposed by Senator Rodgers?, Senator Rodgers requested and was granted leave to withdraw the proposal of amendment.

Thereupon, pending third reading of the bill, Senator Ashe moved to amend the Senate proposal of amendment as follows:

First: By adding two new sections to be numbered Secs. 34a and 34b to read as follows:

Sec. 34a. 32 V.S.A. § 6061 is amended to read:

§ 6061. DEFINITIONS

The following definitions shall apply throughout this chapter unless the context requires otherwise:

* * *

(5) “Modified adjusted gross income” means “federal adjusted gross income”:

* * *

(E) with the addition of an asset adjustment of ± 2 x the sum of interest and dividend income included in household income above \$10,000.00 for claimants under age 65 years of age, regardless of whether that dividend or interest income is included in federal adjusted gross income.

* * *

Sec. 34b. REPORT ON HOUSEHOLD ASSETS

On or before January 15, 2016, the Commissioner of Taxes, in conjunction with its Tax Advisory Board, shall report to the General Assembly with recommendations for how to measure total household assets, in addition to household income, as a criterion for eligibility for statewide education property tax adjustments in 32 V.S.A. chapter 154.

Second: In Sec. 39 (effective dates) by inserting subdivisions (cc) and (dd) to read:

(cc) Sec. 34a (interest and dividend income) shall take effect on January 1, 2016, and apply to claims filed in 2016 and after.

(dd) Sec. 34b (asset report) shall take effect on passage.

Which was agreed to.

Thereupon, the bill was read the third time and passed in concurrence with proposal of amendment.

Thereupon, on motion of Senator Campbell, the rules were suspended, and the bill was ordered messaged to the House forthwith.

Rules Suspended; Immediate Consideration; House Proposal of Amendment Not Concurred In; Committee of Conference Requested

S. 93.

Appearing on the Calendar for notice, on motion of Senator Campbell, the rules were suspended and Senate bill entitled:

An act relating to lobbying disclosures.

Was taken up for immediate consideration.

The House proposes to the Senate to amend the bill by striking out all after the enacting clause and inserting in lieu thereof the following:

Sec. 1. FINDINGS

(a) The effective public disclosure of the identity and extent of the efforts of registered lobbyists, lobbying firms, and lobbyist employers to influence Vermont's legislators during the legislative session will increase public confidence in the integrity of the governmental process.

(b) Responsible representative government requires public awareness of the efforts of registered lobbyists, lobbying firms, and lobbyist employers to influence the public decision-making process in the Legislative Branch of Vermont's government.

(c) Requiring registered lobbyists, lobbying firms, and lobbyist employers to report significant advertisements and advertising campaigns that are intended, designed, or calculated to influence legislative action or to solicit others to influence legislative action enables the public and legislators to evaluate better the pressures and content of the message when considering that action.

(d) The lack of detail in current required lobbying disclosure filings does not provide the public and legislators with enough relevant information about who is attempting to influence the legislative process through advertising, and the timing of current required lobbying disclosure filings prevents the public

and legislators from evaluating the pressures and content of lobbying advertising at the time public policy is being debated. The requirement in this act to report significant lobbying advertisements and advertising campaigns within 48 hours provides the public and legislators with specific and timely information regarding who is spending money to influence the legislative process, and the amount being spent to do so.

(e) Requiring registered lobbyists, lobbying firms, and lobbyist employers to designate clearly the name of the lobbyist, lobbying firm, or lobbyist employer paying for an advertisement within the advertisement allows the public and legislators to determine who is attempting to influence the legislative process through advertising, to evaluate the pressures and content of lobbying advertising at the time when public policy is being debated, to trace coordinated advertising buys, and to track such spending over time.

(f) Prohibiting lobbyists, lobbying firms, and lobbyist employers from contributing to legislative leadership political committees while the General Assembly is in session ensures that the prohibition on contributions to legislators set forth in 2 V.S.A. § 266 (prohibited conduct) is not circumvented, since legislative leadership political committees are intertwined with legislators in those political committees' support of legislators.

Sec. 2. 2 V.S.A. § 264c is added to read:

§ 264c. IDENTIFICATION IN AND REPORT OF CERTAIN LOBBYING ADVERTISEMENTS

(a) Identification.

(1) An advertisement that is intended, designed, or calculated to influence legislative action or to solicit others to influence legislative action and that is made at any time prior to final adjournment of a biennial or adjourned legislative session shall contain the name of any lobbyist, lobbying firm, or lobbyist employer that made an expenditure for the advertisement and language that the advertisement was paid for, or paid in part, by the lobbyist, lobbying firm, or lobbyist employer; provided, however:

(A) if there are more than three such names, only the three lobbyists, lobbying firms, or lobbyist employers that made the largest expenditures for the advertisement shall be required to be identified; and

(B) if a lobbyist or lobbying firm made the expenditure on behalf of a lobbyist employer, the identification information set forth in subdivision (1) of this subsection shall be in the name of that lobbyist employer.

(2) This identification information shall appear prominently and in a manner such that a reasonable person would clearly understand by whom the expenditure has been made.

(b) Report.

(1) In addition to any other reports required to be filed under this chapter, a lobbyist, lobbying firm, or lobbyist employer shall file an advertisement report with the Secretary of State if he, she, or it makes an expenditure or expenditures:

(A) for any advertisement that is described in subsection (a) of this section and that has a cost totaling \$1,000.00 or more; or

(B) for any advertising campaign that contains advertisements described in subsection (a) of this section and that has a cost totaling \$1,000.00 or more.

(2) The report shall be made for each advertisement or advertising campaign described in subdivision (1) of this subsection and shall identify the lobbyist, lobbying firm, or lobbyist employer that made the expenditure; the amount and date of the expenditure and to whom it was paid; and a brief description of the advertisement or advertising campaign.

(3) The report shall be filed within 48 hours of the expenditure or the advertisement or advertising campaign, whichever occurs first.

(4) If a lobbyist or lobbying firm made an expenditure described in subdivision (1) of this subsection on behalf of a lobbyist employer and that lobbyist or lobbying firm filed the report required by this subsection, the report shall specifically identify the employer on whose behalf the expenditure was made.

(c) Definitions. As used in this section:

(1) "Advertisement" means a television commercial, radio commercial, mass mailing, mass electronic or digital communication, literature drop, newspaper or periodical advertisement, banner, sign, robotic phone call, or telephone bank. As used in this subdivision, "telephone bank" means more than 500 telephone calls of an identical or substantially similar nature that are made to the general public within any 30-day period.

(2) "Advertising campaign" means advertisements substantially similar in nature, regardless of the media in which they are placed.

Sec. 3. 2 V.S.A. § 264 is amended to read:

§ 264. REPORTS OF EXPENDITURES, COMPENSATION, AND GIFTS;
EMPLOYERS; LOBBYISTS

(a) Every employer and every lobbyist registered or required to be registered under this chapter shall file disclosure reports with the Secretary of State as follows:

(1) on or before January 15, for the preceding period beginning on September 1 and ending with December 31;

(2) on or before February 15, for the preceding period beginning on January 1 and ending with January 31;

(3) on or before March 15, for the preceding period beginning on February 1 and ending with the last day of February;

(4) on or before April 15, for the preceding period beginning on January 1 and ending with March 31;

~~(2)~~(5) on or before May 15, for the preceding period beginning on April 1 and ending with April 30;

(6) on or before June 15, for the preceding period beginning on May 1 and ending with May 31; and

(7) on or before July 15, for the preceding period beginning on June 1 and ending with June 30;

~~(3)~~ on or before January 25, for the preceding period beginning on July 1 and ending with December 31.

(b) An employer shall disclose for the period of the report the following information:

(1) A total of all lobbying expenditures made by the employer in each of the following categories:

(A) Advertising, including television, radio, print, and electronic media.

(B) Expenses incurred for telemarketing, polling, or similar activities if the activities are intended, designed, or calculated, directly or indirectly, to influence legislative or administrative action. The report shall specify the amount, the person to whom the amount was paid, and a brief description of the activity.

(C) Contractual agreements in excess of \$100.00 per year or direct business relationships that are in existence or were entered into within the previous 12 months between the employer and:

- (i) a legislator or administrator;
- (ii) a legislator's or administrator's spouse; or
- (iii) a legislator's or administrator's dependent household member.

(D) The total amount of any other lobbying expenditures.

* * *

~~(4) Contractual agreements in excess of \$100.00 per year or direct business relationships that are in existence or were entered into within the previous 12 months between the employer and:~~

- ~~(A) a legislator or administrator;~~
 - ~~(B) a legislator's or administrator's spouse; or~~
 - ~~(C) a legislator's or administrator's dependent household member.~~
- [Repealed.]

(c) A lobbyist shall disclose for the period of the report the following information:

(1) A total of all lobbying expenditures made by the lobbyist in each of the following categories:

(A) Advertising, including television, radio, print, and electronic media.

(B) Expenses incurred for telemarketing, polling, or similar activities if the activities are intended, designed, or calculated, directly or indirectly, to influence legislative or administrative action. The report shall specify the amount, the person to whom the amount was paid, and a brief description of the activity.

(C) Contractual agreements in excess of \$100.00 per year or direct business relationships that are in existence or were entered into within the previous 12 months between the lobbyist and:

- (i) a legislator or administrator;
- (ii) a legislator's or administrator's spouse; or
- (iii) a legislator's or administrator's dependent household member.

(D) The total amount of any other lobbying expenditures.

* * *

~~(4) Contractual agreements in excess of \$100.00 per year or direct business relationships that are in existence or were entered into within the previous 12 months between the lobbyist and:~~

~~(A) a legislator or administrator;~~

~~(B) a legislator's or administrator's spouse; or~~

~~(C) a legislator's or administrator's dependent household member.~~

[Repealed.]

* * *

~~(h) Disclosure reports shall be made on forms published by the Secretary of State and shall be signed by the employer or lobbyist. The Secretary of State shall make those forms available to registered employers and lobbyists on the Secretary's website not later than 30 days before each filing deadline.~~

[Repealed.]

* * *

Sec. 4. 2 V.S.A. § 264b is amended to read:

§ 264b. LOBBYING FIRM LISTINGS; REPORTS OF EXPENDITURES, COMPENSATION, AND GIFTS; LOBBYING FIRMS

* * *

(b) Every lobbying firm shall file a disclosure report on the same day as lobbyist disclosure reports are due under subsection 264(a) of this title which shall include:

(1) A total of all lobbying expenditures made by the lobbying firm in each of the following categories:

(A) Advertising, including television, radio, print, and electronic media.

(B) Expenses incurred for telemarketing, polling, or similar activities if the activities are intended, designed, or calculated, directly or indirectly, to influence legislative or administrative action. The report shall specify the amount, the person to whom the amount was paid, and a brief description of the activity.

(C) Contractual agreements in excess of \$100.00 per year or direct business relationships that are in existence or were entered into within the previous 12 months between the lobbying firm and:

(i) a legislator or administrator;

(ii) a legislator's or administrator's spouse; or

(iii) a legislator's or administrator's dependent household member.

(D) The total amount of any other lobbying expenditures.

* * *

~~(4) Contractual agreements in excess of \$100.00 per year or direct business relationships that are in existence or were entered into within the previous 12 months between the lobbying firm and:~~

~~(A) a legislator or administrator;~~

~~(B) a legislator's or administrator's spouse or civil union partner; or~~

~~(C) a legislator's or administrator's dependent household member.~~

[Repealed.]

Sec. 5. 2 V.S.A. § 265 is amended to read:

§ 265. PUBLIC ACCESS; REGISTRATION STATEMENTS; REPORTS SUBMISSION OF AND ACCESS TO LOBBYING DISCLOSURES

~~The secretary of state shall maintain copies of all lobbyist and employer registration statements and disclosure reports and all lobbying firm disclosure reports arranged alphabetically, which shall be a public record available for public inspection during ordinary business hours. The secretary of state shall also compile and maintain a separate report for each reporting period for each legislator or administrative official indicating the gifts reported to have been given to that legislator or official during the reporting period by employers, lobbyists, or lobbying firms, which shall be a public record available for public inspection during ordinary business hours. On January 1 of each odd-numbered year, the secretary may discard statements and reports that have been maintained for a period of four years.~~

(a) The Secretary of State shall provide on his or her website an online database of the lobbying disclosures required under this chapter.

(1) In this database, the Secretary shall provide digital access to each form he or she shall provide to enable a person to file the statements or reports required under this chapter. Digital access shall enable such a person to file these lobbying disclosures by completing and submitting the disclosure to the Secretary of State online.

(2) The Secretary shall maintain on the online database all disclosures that have been filed digitally on it so that any person may have direct machine-readable electronic access to the individual data elements in each disclosure and the ability to search those data elements as soon as a disclosure is filed.

(b) Any person required to file a disclosure with the Secretary of State under this chapter shall sign it, declare that it is made under the penalties of perjury, and file it digitally on the online database.

Sec. 6. 2 V.S.A. § 267 is amended to read:

§ 267. ~~VERIFICATION OF STATEMENTS AND REPORTS~~

~~Any statement or report required to be made under any provision of this chapter shall contain or be verified by a written declaration that it is made under the penalties of perjury. [Repealed.]~~

Sec. 7. TRANSITIONAL PROVISION; SECRETARY OF STATE; MAINTENANCE OF PRIOR LOBBYING DISCLOSURES

(a) The Secretary of State shall maintain copies of the lobbying reports and registration statements filed with him or her on paper prior to the effective date of this act and the separate report of gifts to legislators and administrative officials he or she compiled under the provisions of 2 V.S.A. § 265 in effect prior to the effective date of this act, and shall make those disclosures available for public inspection during ordinary business hours.

(b) On January 1 of each odd-numbered year, the Secretary may discard the disclosures described in subsection (a) of this section that he or she has maintained for a period of at least four years.

Sec. 8. 2 V.S.A. § 266 is amended to read:

§ 266. PROHIBITED CONDUCT

(a) It shall be prohibited conduct:

(1) to employ a lobbyist or lobbying firm, or accept employment as a lobbyist or lobbying firm, for compensation that is dependent on a contingency;

(2) for a legislator or administrative official to solicit a gift, other than a ~~political~~ contribution, from a registered employer or registered lobbyist or a lobbying firm engaged by an employer, except that charitable contributions for nonprofit organizations qualified under ~~Section 26 U.S.C. § 501(c)(3) of the federal Internal Revenue Code~~ may be solicited from registered employers and registered lobbyists or lobbying firms engaged by an employer; or

(3)(A) when the ~~general assembly~~ General Assembly is in session, until adjournment sine die;

(i) for a legislator, a legislator's candidate's committee, a legislative leadership political committee, or an administrative official to solicit a ~~political campaign~~ contribution as defined in ~~17 V.S.A. § 2801~~ from a registered lobbyist, a registered employer, or a lobbying firm engaged by an employer or registered employer; or

(ii) for a registered lobbyist ~~or~~, registered employer, or a lobbying firm engaged by an employer to make or promise a ~~political campaign contribution to any member of the general assembly or any member's campaign~~ a legislator, a legislator's candidate's committee, or a legislative leadership political committee.

(b) As used in this section, "candidate's committee," "contribution," and "legislative leadership political committee" shall have the same meanings as in 17 V.S.A. § 2901.

Sec. 9. 17 V.S.A. § 2901 is amended to read:

§ 2901. DEFINITIONS

As used in this chapter:

* * *

(13) "Political committee" or "political action committee" means any formal or informal committee of two or more individuals or a corporation, labor organization, public interest group, or other entity, not including a political party, which accepts contributions of \$1,000.00 or more and makes expenditures of \$1,000.00 or more in any two-year general election cycle for the purpose of supporting or opposing one or more candidates, influencing an election, or advocating a position on a public question in any election, and includes an independent expenditure-only political committee and a legislative leadership political committee.

* * *

(19) "Legislative leadership political committee" means a political committee established by or on behalf of a political party caucus within a chamber of the General Assembly.

Sec. 10. 17 V.S.A. § 2922 is amended to read:

§ 2922. POLITICAL COMMITTEES; REGISTRATION; CHECKING ACCOUNT; TREASURER

(a)(1) Each political committee shall register with the Secretary of State within 10 days of making expenditures of \$1,000.00 or more and accepting contributions of \$1,000.00 or more stating its full name and address; the name and address of the bank in which it maintains its campaign checking account; and the name and address of the treasurer responsible for maintaining the checking account.

(2)(A) In addition to the requirements of subdivision (1) of this subsection, a legislative leadership political committee shall designate in its registration that it is established as a legislative leadership political committee.

(B) The Secretary of State shall provide on his or her website a list of all legislative leadership political committees that have been designated as provided in this subdivision (2).

* * *

Sec. 11. TRANSITIONAL PROVISION; EXISTING LEGISLATIVE LEADERSHIP POLITICAL COMMITTEES

(a) A legislative leadership political committee in existence immediately prior to the effective date of this act shall update its registration with the Secretary of State as provided in Sec. 10, 17 V.S.A. § 2922(a)(2), of this act on or before July 15, 2015.

(b) As used in this section, "legislative leadership political committee" shall have the same meaning as set forth in Sec. 9, 17 V.S.A. § 2901(19), of this act.

Sec. 12. EFFECTIVE DATE

This act shall take effect on July 1, 2015.

Thereupon, pending the question, Shall the Senate concur in the House proposal of amendment?, on motion of Senator White, the Senate refused to concur in the House proposal of amendment and requested a Committee of Conference.

Rules Suspended; Immediate Consideration; House Proposal of Amendment Not Concurred In; Committee of Conference Requested

S. 102.

Appearing on the Calendar for notice, on motion of Senator Campbell, the rules were suspended and Senate bill entitled:

An act relating to forfeiture of property associated with animal fighting and certain regulated drug possession, sale, and trafficking violations.

Was taken up for immediate consideration.

The House proposes to the Senate to amend the bill by striking out all after the enacting clause and inserting in lieu thereof the following:

Sec. 1. 13 V.S.A. § 352 is amended to read:

§ 352. CRUELTY TO ANIMALS

A person commits the crime of cruelty to animals if the person:

* * *

(5)(A) owns, possesses, keeps, or trains an animal engaged in an exhibition of fighting, or possesses, keeps, or trains any animal with intent that it be engaged in an exhibition of fighting, or permits any such act to be done on premises under his or her charge or control; or

(B) owns, possesses, ships, transports, delivers, or keeps a device, equipment, or implement with the intent that it be used to train or condition an animal for participation in animal fighting, or enhance an animal's fighting capability.

* * *

Sec. 2. 13 V.S.A. § 353 is amended to read:

§ 353. DEGREE OF OFFENSE; SENTENCING UPON CONVICTION

(a) Penalties.

(1) Except as provided in subdivision (3) or (4) of this subsection, cruelty to animals under section 352 of this title shall be punishable by a sentence of imprisonment of not more than one year, or a fine of not more than \$2,000.00, or both. Second and subsequent convictions shall be punishable by a sentence of imprisonment of not more than two years or a fine of not more than \$5,000.00, or both.

(2) Aggravated cruelty under section 352a of this title shall be punishable by a sentence of imprisonment of not more than three years or a fine of not more than \$5,000.00, or both. Second and subsequent offenses shall be punishable by a sentence of imprisonment of not more than five years or a fine of not more than \$7,500.00, or both.

(3) An offense committed under subdivision 352(5)(A) or (6) of this title shall be punishable by a sentence of imprisonment of not more than five years, or a fine of not more than \$5,000.00, or both.

* * *

Sec. 3. 13 V.S.A. § 364 is amended to read:

§ 364. ANIMAL FIGHTS

(a) A person who participates in a fighting exhibition of animals shall be in violation of subdivisions 352(5) and (6) of this title.

(b) In addition to seizure of fighting birds or animals involved in a fighting exhibition, a law enforcement officer or humane officer may seize any equipment, ~~associated with that activity~~ personal property, monies, securities, or other things of value used to engage in a violation or further a violation of subdivisions 352(5) and (6) of this title.

(c) In addition to the imposition of a penalty under this chapter, conviction under this section shall result in forfeiture of all seized fighting animals ~~and~~, equipment, and other property subject to seizure under this section. The animals may be destroyed humanely or otherwise disposed of as directed by the court.

(d) Property subject to forfeiture under this section may be seized upon process issued by the court having jurisdiction over the property. Seizure without process may be made:

(1) incident to a lawful arrest;

(2) pursuant to a search warrant; or

(3) if there is probable cause to believe that the property was used or is intended to be used in violation of this section.

(e) Forfeiture proceedings instituted pursuant to the provisions of this section for property other than animals are subject to the procedures and requirements for forfeiture as set forth in 18 V.S.A. chapter 84, subchapter 2.

Sec. 4. 18 V.S.A. § 4241 is amended to read:

§ 4241. SCOPE

(a) The following property shall be subject to this subchapter:

* * *

(7) Any property seized pursuant to 13 V.S.A. § 364.

~~(b) This subchapter shall not apply to any property used or intended for use in an offense involving two ounces or less of marijuana or in connection with hemp or hemp products as defined in 6 V.S.A. § 562. This subchapter shall apply to property for which forfeiture is sought in connection with:~~

(1) a violation under chapter 84, subchapter 1 of this title that carries by law a maximum penalty of ten years' incarceration or greater; or

(2) a violation of 13 V.S.A. § 364.

Sec. 5. 18 V.S.A. § 4242 is amended to read:

§ 4242. SEIZURE

* * *

(b) Any property subject to forfeiture under this subchapter may be seized upon process. Seizure without process may be made when:

(1) the seizure is incident to an arrest with probable cause or a search under a valid search warrant;

(2) the property subject to seizure has been the subject of a prior judgment in favor of the ~~state~~ State in a forfeiture proceeding under this subchapter; or

(3) the seizure is incident to a valid warrantless search.

(c) If property is seized without process under subdivision (b)(1) or (3) of this section, the ~~state~~ State shall forthwith petition the court for a preliminary order or process under subsection (a) of this section.

(d) ~~All~~ Notwithstanding subsection 4241(b) of this title, all regulated drugs the possession of which is prohibited under this chapter are contraband and shall be automatically forfeited to the state and destroyed.

Sec. 6. 18 V.S.A. § 4243 is amended to read:

§ 4243. ~~PETITION FOR~~ JUDICIAL FORFEITURE PROCEDURE

(a) ~~The State~~ Conviction required. An asset is subject to forfeiture by judicial determination under section 4241 of this title and 13 V.S.A. § 364 if a person is convicted of the criminal offense related to the action for forfeiture.

(b) Evidence. The State may introduce into evidence in the judicial forfeiture case the fact of a conviction in the Criminal Division.

(c) Burden of proof. The State bears the burden of proving by clear and convincing evidence that the property is an instrument of or represents the proceeds of the underlying offense.

(d) Notice. Within 60 days from when the seizure occurs, the State shall notify any owners, possessors, and lienholders of the property of the action, if known or readily ascertainable. Upon motion by the State, a court may extend the time period for sending notice for a period not to exceed 90 days for good cause shown.

(e) Return of property. If notice is not sent in accordance with subsection (d) of this section, and no time extension is granted or the extension period has expired, the law enforcement agency shall return the property to the person from whom the property was seized. An agency's return of property due to lack of proper notice does not restrict the agency's authority to commence a forfeiture proceeding at a later time. Nothing in this subsection shall require the agency to return contraband, evidence, or other property that the person from whom the property was seized is not entitled to lawfully possess.

(f) Filing of petition. Except as provided in section 4243a of this title, the State shall file a petition for forfeiture of any property seized under section 4242 of this title promptly, but not more than 14 days from the date the preliminary order or process is issued. The petition shall be filed in the

~~superior court~~ Superior Court of the county in which the property is located or in any court with jurisdiction over a criminal proceeding related to the property.

~~(b)~~(g) Service of petition. A copy of the petition shall be ~~sent by certified mail to~~ served on all persons named in the petition as provided for in Rule 4 of the Vermont Rules of Civil Procedure. In addition, the ~~state~~ State shall cause notice of the petition to be published in a newspaper of general circulation in the ~~state~~ State, as ordered by the court. The petition shall state:

(1) the facts upon which the forfeiture is requested, including a description of the property subject to forfeiture, and the type and quantity of regulated drug involved;

(2) the names of the apparent owner or owners, lienholders who have properly recorded their interests, and any other person appearing to have an interest; and, in the case of a conveyance, the name of the person holding title, the registered owner, and the make, model, and year of the conveyance.

Sec. 7. 18 V.S.A. § 4244 is amended to read:

§ 4244. FORFEITURE HEARING

(a) ~~The court~~ Within 60 days following service of notice of seizure and forfeiture under sections 4243 of this title, a claimant may file a demand for judicial determination of the forfeiture. The demand must be in the form of a civil complaint accompanied by a sworn affidavit setting forth the facts upon which the claimant intends to rely, including, if relevant, the noncriminal source of the asset or currency at issue. The demand must be filed with the court administrator in the county in which the seizure occurred.

~~(b) The Court shall hold a hearing on the petition no less than 14 nor more than 30 days after notice. For good cause shown, or on the court's own motion, the court may stay the forfeiture proceedings pending resolution of related criminal proceedings. If a person named in the petition is a defendant in a related criminal proceeding and the proceeding is dismissed or results in a judgment of acquittal, the petition shall be dismissed as to the defendant's interest in the property as soon as practicable after, and in any event no later than 90 days following, the conclusion of the criminal prosecution.~~

~~(b)~~(c) A lienholder who has received notice of a forfeiture proceeding may intervene as a party. If the ~~court~~ Court finds that the lienholder has a valid, good faith interest in the subject property which is not held through a straw purchase, trust or otherwise for the actual benefit of another and that the lienholder did not at any time have knowledge or reason to believe that the property was being or would be used in violation of the law, the ~~court~~ Court

upon forfeiture shall order compensation to the lienholder to the extent of the lienholder's interest.

(d) The Court shall not order the forfeiture of property if an owner, co-owner, or person who regularly uses the property, other than the defendant, shows by a preponderance of the evidence that the owner, co-owner, or regular user did not consent to or have any express or implied knowledge that the property was being or was intended to be used in a manner that would subject the property to forfeiture, or that the owner, co-owner, or regular user had no reasonable opportunity or capacity to prevent the defendant from using the property.

~~(e)~~(e) The proceeding shall be against the property and shall be deemed civil in nature. The ~~state~~ State shall have the burden of proving all material facts by clear and convincing evidence.

~~(f)~~(f) The ~~court~~ Court shall make findings of fact and conclusions of law and shall issue a final order. If the petition is granted, the ~~court~~ Court shall order the property held for evidentiary purposes, delivered to the ~~state treasurer~~ State Treasurer, or, in the case of regulated drugs or property which is harmful to the public, destroyed.

Sec. 8. 18 V.S.A. § 4247 is amended to read:

§ 4247. DISPOSITION OF PROPERTY

(a) Whenever property is forfeited and delivered to the ~~state treasurer~~ State Treasurer under this subchapter, the ~~state treasurer~~ State Treasurer shall, no sooner than 90 days of the date the property is delivered, sell the property at a public sale held under 27 V.S.A. chapter 13.

(b) The proceeds from the sale of forfeited property shall be used first to offset any costs of selling the property, and then, after any liens on the property have been paid in full, applied to payment of seizure, storage, and forfeiture expenses, including animal care expenses related to the underlying violation. Remaining proceeds shall be distributed as follows:

(1)(A) Forty percent shall be distributed among:

- (i) the Office of the Attorney General;
- (ii) the Department of State's Attorneys and Sheriffs; and
- (iii) State and local law enforcement agencies.

(B) The Governor's Criminal Justice and Substance Abuse Cabinet is authorized to determine the allocations among the groups listed in subdivision (A) of this subdivision (1), and may only reimburse the prosecutor and law enforcement agencies that participated in the enforcement effort resulting in

the forfeiture for expenses incurred, including actual expenses for involved personnel. The proceeds shall be held by the Treasurer until the Cabinet notifies the Treasurer of the allocation determinations, at which time the Treasurer shall forward the allocated amounts to the appropriate agency's operating funds.

(2) The remaining 60 percent shall be deposited in the General Fund.

(c) The State Treasurer shall report annually to the House and Senate Committees on Appropriations on the amount of proceeds collected from the sale of forfeited property under this subchapter, the reimbursements made in accordance with subdivision (b)(1)(B) of this section, and the allocations of net proceeds made by the Governor's Criminal Justice and Substance Abuse Cabinet in accordance with subdivision (b)(1) of this section. .

Sec. 9. 23 V.S.A. § 1213c is amended to read:

§ 1213c. IMMOBILIZATION AND FORFEITURE PROCEEDINGS

* * *

(o) A law enforcement or prosecution agency conducting forfeitures under this section may accept, receive, and disburse in furtherance of its duties and functions under this section any appropriations, grants, and donations made available by the state of Vermont and its agencies, the federal government and its agencies, any municipality or other unit of local government, or private or civil sources.

Sec. 10. ANIMAL CRUELTY RESPONSE TASK FORCE

(a) Creation. There is created a task force to evaluate the state of animal cruelty investigation and response in Vermont, including the resources devoted to animal investigation and response services and to recommend ways to consolidate, collaborate, or reorganize to use more effectively limited resources while improving the response to animal cruelty.

(b) Membership. The Task Force shall be composed of the following members:

(1) a representative from the Governor's office;

(2) a member of the Vermont State Police;

(3) a member of the VT Police Chiefs Association;

(4) a representative of the VT Animal Control Association;

(5) a Humane Officer from a VT humane society focusing on domestic animals;

(6) a Humane Officer of a VT humane society focusing on large animals (livestock);

(7) a representative of the Vermont Humane Federation;

(8) a representative of the Vermont Federation of Dog Clubs;

(9) the Executive Director of the Department of State's Attorneys and Sheriffs or designee;

(10) a representative of the Vermont Veterinary Medical Association;

(11) a representative of the Vermont Agency of Agriculture, Food and Markets;

(12) a representative of the VT Constables Association;

(13) a representative of the VT Town Clerks Association;

(14) a representative of the Department for Children and Families; and

(15) a representative of the VT Federation of Sportsmen's Clubs.

(c) Powers and duties. The Task Force, in consultation with the Office of the Defender General, shall study and make recommendations concerning:

(1) training for humane agents, animal control officers, law enforcement officers, and prosecutors;

(2) the development of uniform response protocols for receiving, investigating, and following up on complaints of animal cruelty, including sentencing recommendations;

(3) the development of a centralized data collection system capable of sharing data collected from both the public and private sectors on animal cruelty substantiated reports and outcomes;

(4) funding the various responsibilities that are involved with an animal cruelty investigation, including which State agencies should be responsible for any State level authority and oversight; and

(5) any other issue the Task Force determines is relevant to improve the efficiency, process, and results of animal cruelty response actions in Vermont.

(d) Report. On or before January 15, 2016, the Task Force shall report its findings and recommendations to the House and Senate Committees on Judiciary.

(e) Meetings and sunset.

(1) The representative from the Governor's office shall call the first meeting of the Task Force.

(2) The Task Force shall select a chair from among its members at the first meeting.

(3) The Task Force shall hold its first meeting no later than August 15, 2015.

(4) Meetings of the Task Force shall be public meetings.

(5) The Task Force shall cease to exist on January 16, 2016.

Sec. 11. EFFECTIVE DATE

This act shall take effect on July 1, 2015.

Thereupon, pending the question, Shall the Senate concur in the House proposal of amendment?, on motion of Senator Sears, the Senate refused to concur in the House proposal of amendment and requested a Committee of Conference.

Rules Suspended; Immediate Consideration; House Proposals of Amendment to Senate Proposal of Amendment Concurred In

H. 488.

Appearing on the Calendar for notice, on motion of Senator Campbell, the rules were suspended and Senate bill entitled:

An act relating to the State's Transportation Program and miscellaneous changes to laws related to transportation.

Was taken up for immediate consideration.

The House proposes to the Senate to amend the Senate proposal of amendment as follows:

First: In Sec. 10, subsection (a), in the first sentence, after the words The Agency by inserting the following: , in consultation with the Joint Fiscal Office.

Second: In Sec. 10, subsection (b), in the first sentence, after the words The Agency by inserting the following: , in consultation with the Joint Fiscal Office.

Third: In Sec. 11, subsections (a) and (b), in the first sentence, after the words The Agency by inserting the following: , in consultation with the Joint Fiscal Office,

Fourth: In Sec. 12, in subsection (a), in the first sentence, by inserting the following after the words Agency of Human Services by inserting the following: , the Joint Fiscal Office,

Fifth: By inserting a new section to be numbered Sec. 21a to read as follows:

Sec. 21a. MUNICIPAL MITIGATION GRANT PROGRAM; SPENDING AUTHORITY

In the fiscal year 2017, 2018, and 2019 Transportation Programs adopted by the General Assembly, the General Assembly shall approve spending authority for the Municipal Mitigation Grant Program for grants to municipalities for inventory activities or construction projects that address town highway stormwater management, in an amount that is at least \$1,000,000.00 greater than the \$440,000.00 of spending authority approved in this act for fiscal year 2016 for the Better Backroads Program. Not less than \$1,000,000.00 of the monies appropriated to implement this additional spending authority shall be drawn from transportation funds made available from the \$2,500,000.00 reduction scheduled to occur under 19 V.S.A. § 11a in the amount of transportation funds appropriated to the Department of Public Safety.

Sixth: By inserting a new section to be numbered Sec. 26a to read numbered :

Sec. 26a. 29 V.S.A. § 820 is amended to read:

§ 820. THE NAMING OF STATE BUILDINGS AND FACILITIES

The Except for State transportation buildings and facilities named by the Transportation Board in accordance with 19 V.S.A. § 5, the name by which a state State building or facility is to be known shall be authorized by the ~~general assembly~~ General Assembly.

Thereupon, the question, Shall the Senate concur in the House proposal of amendment to the Senate proposal of amendment?, was decided in the affirmative.

Proposal of Amendment; Third Reading Ordered

H. 480.

Senator Baruth, for the Committee on Education, to which was referred House bill entitled:

An act relating to making miscellaneous technical and other amendments to education laws.

Reported recommending that the Senate propose to the House to amend the bill by striking out all after the enacting clause and inserting in lieu thereof the following:

* * * Elementary Education; Prekindergarten * * *

Sec. 1. 16 V.S.A. § 11(a)(3) is amended to read:

(3) “Elementary education” means a program of public school education adapted to the needs of students in prekindergarten, kindergarten, and the first six grades.

* * * School Boards; Designation; Technical Correction * * *

Sec. 2. 16 V.S.A. § 563(31) is amended to read:

(31) Subject to the requirements of section 571 of this title, may enter into contracts with other school boards to provide joint programs, services, facilities, and professional or other staff. ~~Nothing herein shall be construed to permit the designation by a school district that does not maintain a secondary school of another school district's secondary school as the secondary school of the district.~~

* * * Sight and Hearing Testing; Equipment * * *

Sec. 3. REPEAL

16 V.S.A. § 1421 (sight and hearing testing equipment) is repealed.

* * * Vermont State Colleges; Technical Correction * * *

Sec. 4. 16 V.S.A. § 2179 is amended to read:

§ 2179. NONAPPLICABILITY OF CERTAIN STATUTES

Except as expressly provided in this chapter, the Corporation, its officers and employees shall not be governed by:

* * *

(9) 21 V.S.A. § 342(d)(c), dealing with required written employee authorization before an employer may pay wages through electronic funds transfer or other direct deposit systems to a checking, savings, or other deposit account maintained by the employee within or outside the State.

* * * Tiered System of Supports * * *

Sec. 5. 16 V.S.A. § 2902 is amended to read:

§ 2902. ~~EDUCATIONAL SUPPORT SYSTEM~~ TIERED SYSTEM OF SUPPORTS AND EDUCATIONAL SUPPORT TEAM

(a) Within each school district's comprehensive system of educational services, each public school shall develop and maintain ~~an educational support system for students who require additional assistance in order~~ a tiered system of academic and behavioral supports for the purpose of providing all students with the opportunity to succeed or to be challenged in the general education environment. For each school it maintains, a school district board shall assign responsibility for developing and maintaining the ~~educational support system~~ tiered system of supports either to the superintendent pursuant to a contract entered into under section 267 of this title or to the school principal. The educational support system school shall provide all students a full and fair opportunity to access the system of supports and achieve educational success. The tiered system of supports shall, at a minimum, include an educational support team and a range of support and remedial services, including, instructional and behavioral interventions, and accommodations that are available as needed for any student who requires support beyond what can be provided in the general education classroom, and may include intensive, individualized interventions for any student requiring a higher level of support.

(b) ~~The educational support system~~ tiered system of supports shall:

(1) Be ~~integrated to the extent~~ aligned as appropriate with the general education curriculum.

(2) Be designed to ~~increase~~ enhance the ability of the general education system to meet the needs of all students.

(3) Be designed to provide ~~students the support needed~~ necessary supports promptly, regardless of an individual student's eligibility for categorical programs.

(4) ~~Provide clear procedures and methods for addressing student behavior that is disruptive to the learning environment and include educational options, support services, and consultation or training for staff where appropriate. Procedures may include removal of a student from the classroom or the school building for as long as appropriate, consistent with state and federal law and the school's policy on student discipline, after reasonable effort has been made to support the student in the regular classroom environment~~ Seek to identify and respond to students in need of support for at-risk behaviors and to students in need of specialized, individualized behavior supports.

(5) ~~Ensure~~ Provide all students with a continuum of evidence-based and research-based behavior practices that teach and encourage prosocial skills and behaviors schoolwide.

(6) Promote collaboration with families, community supports, and the system of health and human services.

* * *

* * * Small School Support; Outdated References * * *

Sec. 6. REPEAL

16 V.S.A. § 4015(d) (small school support; references to two repealed provisions) is repealed.

* * * Education Fund; Technical Correction * * *

Sec. 7. 16 V.S.A. § 4025 is amended to read:

§ 4025. EDUCATION FUND

(a) An Education Fund is established to comprise the following:

* * *

(4) ~~Revenue from the electric generating plant education property tax under 32 V.S.A. § 5402a. [Repealed.]~~

* * *

* * * Effective Date * * *

Sec. 8. EFFECTIVE DATE

This act shall take effect on July 1, 2015.

And that the bill ought to pass in concurrence with such proposal of amendment.

Senator MacDonald, for the Committee on Finance, to which the bill was referred, reported recommending that the bill ought to pass in concurrence with proposal of amendment as recommended by the Committee on Education.

Thereupon, the bill was read the second time by title only pursuant to Rule 43, and pending the question, Shall the bill be read a third time? Senator White moved to amend the proposal of amendment of the Committee on Education, as follows:

* * * University of Vermont and State Agricultural College * * *

Sec. 4a. 16 V.S.A. § 2285 is added to read:

§ 2285. NONAPPLICABILITY OF CERTAIN REQUIREMENTS FOR PAYMENT OF WAGES

Except as expressly provided in this chapter, the University of Vermont and State Agricultural College and its Board of Trustees, officers, and employees shall not be subject to the provisions of 21 V.S.A. § 342(c) that require written employee authorization before an employer may pay wages through electronic funds transfer or other direct deposit systems to a checking, savings, or other deposit account maintained by the employee within or outside the State.

Which was agreed to.

Thereupon, pending the question, Shall the bill be read a third time? Senator Degree moved to amend the proposal of amendment of the Committee on Education, as amended, as follows:

* * * Governance of the Vermont State Colleges; Technical Correction * * *

Sec. 8. 16 V.S.A. § 2172(d) is amended to read:

(d) ~~The Governor, in the case of gubernatorial-appointed trustees, or the Board of Trustees, in the case of Board-elected trustees:~~

(1) The Board of Trustees, after notice and a hearing, may remove a trustee for incompetency, failure to discharge duties, malfeasance, illegal acts, or other cases inimical to the welfare of the Corporation; ~~and~~.

(2) Gubernatorial-appointed trustees shall serve at the pleasure of the Governor pursuant to 3 V.S.A. § 2004.

(3) ~~in~~ In the event of a vacancy occurring under this subsection, the Governor or the Board, as applicable, shall fill the vacancy pursuant to subsection (a) of this section.

* * * Effective Dates * * *

Sec. 9. EFFECTIVE DATES

(a) This section and Secs. 1–7 shall take effect on July 1, 2015.

(b) Sec. 8 (16 V.S.A. § 2172(d)) shall take effect on July 16, 2015.

Which was agreed to.

Thereupon, the proposal of amendment of the Committee on Education, as amended, was agreed to and third reading of the bill was ordered.

Joint Resolution Adopted in Concurrence**J.R.H. 8.**

Joint House resolution of the following title was read the third time and adopted in concurrence:

Joint resolution relating to military suicides.

Proposal of Amendment; Third Reading Ordered**H. 492.**

Senator Flory, for the Committee on Institutions, to which was referred House bill entitled:

An act relating to capital construction and State bonding.

Reported recommending that the Senate propose to the House to amend the bill by striking out all after the enacting clause and inserting in lieu thereof the following:

* * * Capital Appropriations * * *

Sec. 1. LEGISLATIVE INTENT

(a) It is the intent of the General Assembly that of the \$157,207,752.00 authorized in this act, no more than \$80,068,449.00 shall be appropriated in the first year of the biennium, and the remainder shall be appropriated in the second year.

(b) It is the intent of the General Assembly that in the second year of the biennium, any amendments to the appropriations or authorities granted in this act shall take the form of a Capital Construction and State Bonding Adjustment Act. It is the intent of the General Assembly that unless otherwise indicated, all appropriations in this act are subject to capital budget adjustment.

Sec. 2. STATE BUILDINGS

(a) The following sums are appropriated to the Department of Buildings and General Services, and the Commissioner is authorized to direct funds appropriated in this section to the projects contained in this section; however, no project shall be canceled unless the Chairs of the Senate Committee on Institutions and the House Committee on Corrections and Institutions are notified before that action is taken.

(b) The following sums are appropriated in FY 2016:

<u>(1) Statewide, asbestos:</u>	<u>\$50,000.00</u>
<u>(2) Statewide, building reuse and planning:</u>	<u>\$75,000.00</u>

<u>(3) Statewide, contingency:</u>	<u>\$100,000.00</u>
<u>(4) Statewide, elevator repairs and replacement:</u>	<u>\$100,000.00</u>
<u>(5) Statewide, major maintenance:</u>	<u>\$8,210,287.00</u>
<u>(6) Statewide, BGS engineering and architectural project costs:</u>	<u>\$3,567,791.00</u>
<u>(7) Statewide, physical security enhancements:</u>	<u>\$200,000.00</u>
<u>(8) Burlington, 32 Cherry Street, HVAC controls upgrades:</u>	<u>\$150,000.00</u>
<u>(9) Burlington, 108 Cherry Street, garage and structural audit:</u>	<u>\$50,000.00</u>
<u>(10) Montpelier, 120 State Street, life safety and infrastructure improvements:</u>	<u>\$300,000.00</u>
<u>(11) Montpelier, Department of Labor, parking lot expansion:</u>	<u>\$450,000.00</u>
<u>(12) Middlesex, State Archives, renovations:</u>	<u>\$660,000.00</u>
<u>(13) Newport, Northern State Correctional Facility, maintenance shop:</u>	<u>\$450,000.00</u>
<u>(14) Randolph, Agency of Agriculture, Food and Markets and Agency of Natural Resources, collaborative laboratory, finalizing design and construction documents, bid proposal, and permitting:</u>	<u>\$2,500,000.00</u>
<u>(15) Southern State Correctional Facility, construction of Phase I of the steamline replacement, design and cost estimation for Phase II:</u>	<u>\$1,200,000.00</u>
<u>(16) Southern State Correctional Facility, copper waterline replacement and project-related costs:</u>	<u>\$1,829,086.00</u>
<u>(17) St. Johnsbury, Caledonia Courthouse, stabilize foundation:</u>	<u>\$1,700,000.00</u>
<u>(18) Pittsford, Training Center, electrical system upgrade:</u>	<u>\$120,000.00</u>
<u>(19) Waterbury State Office Complex, complex restoration, and project-related costs:</u>	<u>\$19,151,826.00</u>
<u>(20) White River Junction, Windsor Courthouse, design and planning for mechanical, electrical and plumbing, security and energy upgrades:</u>	<u>\$300,000.00</u>

(21) Colchester, Woodside Juvenile Rehabilitation Center, project design and planning, and begin repairs and improvements:

\$200,000.00

(c) The following sums are appropriated in FY 2017:

(1) Statewide, asbestos: \$50,000.00

(2) Statewide, building reuse and planning: \$75,000.00

(3) Statewide, contingency: \$100,000.00

(4) Statewide, elevator repairs and replacement: \$100,000.00

(5) Statewide, major maintenance: \$8,000,000.00

(6) Statewide, BGS engineering and architectural project costs: \$3,677,448.00

(7) Statewide, physical security enhancements: \$200,000.00

(8) Montpelier, 115 State Street, State House lawn, access improvements and water intrusion: \$300,000.00

(9) Montpelier, 120 State Street, life safety and infrastructure improvements: \$1,000,000.00

(10) Randolph, Agency of Agriculture, Food and Markets and Agency of Natural Resources, collaborative laboratory, site construction: \$16,931,385.00

(11) Southern State Correctional Facility, copper waterline replacement: \$1,100,000.00

(12) Pittsford, Training Center, electrical system upgrade: \$500,000.00

(13) Statewide, strategic building realignments: \$300,000.00

(d) Any funds remaining from the amount appropriated in subdivision (b)(19) for restoration and projected-related costs at the Waterbury State Office Complex shall be directed toward the beginning phases of design and fit up of the Weeks and Hanks buildings.

Appropriation – FY 2016 \$41,363,990.00

Appropriation – FY 2017 \$32,333,833.00

Total Appropriation – Section 2 \$73,697,823.00

Sec. 3. ADMINISTRATION

(a) The following sums are appropriated to the Department of Taxes for the Vermont Center for Geographic Information for an ongoing project to update

statewide quadrangle maps through digital orthophotographic quadrangle mapping:

(1) \$125,000.00 is appropriated in FY 2016.

(2) \$125,000.00 is appropriated in FY 2017.

(b) The following sums are appropriated to the Department of Finance and Management for the ERP expansion project (Phase II):

(1) \$5,000,000.00 is appropriated in FY 2016.

(2) \$9,267,470.00 is appropriated in FY 2017.

(c) The sum of \$6,000,000.00 is appropriated in FY 2017 to the Agency of Human Services for the Health and Human Services Enterprise IT System.

<u>Appropriation – FY 2016</u>	<u>\$5,125,000.00</u>
<u>Appropriation – FY 2017</u>	<u>\$15,392,470.00</u>
<u>Total Appropriation – Section 3</u>	<u>\$20,517,470.00</u>

Sec. 4. HUMAN SERVICES

(a) The following sums are appropriated in FY 2016 to the Department of Buildings and General Services for the Agency of Human Services for the projects described in this subsection:

(1) Corrections, perimeter intrusion: \$100,000.00

(2) Corrections, camera and systems: \$100,000.00

(3) Corrections, security upgrades and enhancements: \$100,000.00

(b) The following sums are appropriated in FY 2017 to the Department of Buildings and General Services for the Agency of Human Services for the projects described in this subsection:

(1) Corrections, perimeter intrusion: \$100,000.00

(2) Corrections, security upgrades and enhancements: \$100,000.00

<u>Appropriation – FY 2016</u>	<u>\$300,000.00</u>
<u>Appropriation – FY 2017</u>	<u>\$200,000.00</u>
<u>Total Appropriation – Section 4</u>	<u>\$500,000.00</u>

Sec. 5. JUDICIARY

(a) The sum of \$180,000.00 is appropriated in FY 2016 to the Department of Buildings and General Services for the Judiciary for ADA compliance at county courthouses.

(b) The following sums are appropriated in FY 2016 to the Judiciary:

(1) Statewide court security systems and improvements: \$150,000.00

(2) Judicial case management system: \$750,000.00

(c) The following sums are appropriated in FY 2017 to the Judiciary:

(1) Statewide court security systems and improvements: \$150,000.00

(2) Judicial case management system: \$5,000,000.00

Appropriation – FY 2016 \$1,080,000.00

Appropriation – FY 2017 \$150,000.00

Total Appropriation – Section 5 \$6,230,000.00

Sec. 6. COMMERCE AND COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT

(a) The following sums are appropriated in FY 2016 to the Department of Buildings and General Services for the Agency of Commerce and Community Development for the following projects described in this subsection:

(1) Major maintenance at historic sites statewide: \$200,000.00

(2) Bennington Monument, elevator, roof repairs: \$118,000.00

(b) The following sums are appropriated in FY 2016 to the Agency of Commerce and Community Development for the following projects described in this subsection:

(1) Underwater preserves: \$30,000.00

(2) Placement and replacement of roadside historic markers: \$15,000.00

(3) Unmarked burial fund: \$30,000.00

(c) The following sums are appropriated in FY 2017 to the Department of Buildings and General Services for the Agency of Commerce and Community Development for the following projects described in this subsection:

(1) Major maintenance at historic sites statewide: \$200,000.00

(2) Bennington Monument, elevator, roof repairs: \$50,000.00

(d) The following sums are appropriated in FY 2017 to the Agency of Commerce and Community Development for the following projects described in this subsection:

(1) Underwater preserves: \$30,000.00

(2) Placement and replacement of roadside historic markers: \$15,000.00

<u>Appropriation – FY 2016</u>	<u>\$393,000.00</u>
<u>Appropriation – FY 2017</u>	<u>\$295,000.00</u>
<u>Total Appropriation – Section 6</u>	<u>\$688,000.00</u>

Sec. 7. GRANT PROGRAMS

(a) The following sums are appropriated in FY 2016 for Building Communities Grants established in 24 V.S.A. chapter 137:

(1) To the Agency of Commerce and Community Development, Division for Historic Preservation, for the Historic Preservation Grant Program: \$225,000.00

(2) To the Agency of Commerce and Community Development, Division for Historic Preservation, for the Historic Barns Preservation Grant Program: \$225,000.00

(3) To the Vermont Council on the Arts for the Cultural Facilities Grant Program, the sum of which may be used to match funds that may be made available from the National Endowment for the Arts, provided that all capital funds are made available to the cultural facilities grant program: \$225,000.00

(4) To the Department of Buildings and General Services for the Recreational Facilities Grant Program: \$225,000.00

(5) To the Department of Buildings and General Services for the Regional Economic Development Grant Program: \$225,000.00

(b) The following sum is appropriated in FY 2016 to the Agency of Agriculture, Food and Markets for the Agricultural Fairs Capital Projects Competitive Grant Program: \$225,000.00

(c) The following sums are appropriated in FY 2017 for Building Communities Grants established in 24 V.S.A. chapter 137:

(1) To the Agency of Commerce and Community Development, Division for Historic Preservation, for the Historic Preservation Grant Program: \$225,000.00

(2) To the Agency of Commerce and Community Development, Division for Historic Preservation, for the Historic Barns Preservation Grant Program: \$225,000.00

(3) To the Vermont Council on the Arts for the Cultural Facilities Grant Program, the sum of which may be used to match funds that may be made available from the National Endowment for the Arts, provided that all capital funds are made available to the cultural facilities grant program: \$225,000.00

(4) To the Department of Buildings and General Services for the Recreational Facilities Grant Program: \$225,000.00

(5) To the Department of Buildings and General Services for the Regional Economic Development Grant Program: \$225,000.00

(d) The following sum is appropriated in FY 2017 to the Agency of Agriculture, Food and Markets for the Agricultural Fairs Capital Projects Competitive Grant Program: \$225,000.00

(e) The following amounts are appropriated in FY 2016 to the Department of Buildings and General Services for the Human Services and Educational Facilities Competitive Grant Program:

(1) Human Services: \$120,000.00

(2) Educational Facilities: \$120,000.00

(f) The following amounts are appropriated in FY 2016 to the Department of Buildings and General Services for the Human Services and Educational Facilities Competitive Grant Program:

(1) Human Services: \$110,000.00

(2) Educational Facilities: \$110,000.00

Appropriation – FY 2016 \$1,590,000.00

Appropriation – FY 2017 \$1,570,000.00

Total Appropriation – Section 7 \$3,160,000.00

Sec. 8. EDUCATION

(a) The following sums are appropriated in FY 2016 to the Agency of Education for funding the State share of completed school construction projects pursuant to 16 V.S.A. § 3448 and emergency projects:

(1) Emergency projects: \$82,188.00

(2) School construction projects: \$3,975,500.00

(b) The sum of \$60,000.00 is appropriated in FY 2017 to the Agency of Education for State aid for emergency projects.

Appropriation – FY 2016 \$4,057,688.00

Appropriation – FY 2017 \$60,000.00

Total Appropriation – Section 8 \$4,117,688.00

 Sec. 9. UNIVERSITY OF VERMONT

(a) The sum of \$1,400,000.00 is appropriated in FY 2016 to the University of Vermont for construction, renovation, and major maintenance.

(b) The sum of \$1,400,000.00 is appropriated in FY 2017 to the University of Vermont for construction, renovation, and major maintenance.

Total Appropriation – Section 9 \$2,800,000.00

Sec. 10. VERMONT STATE COLLEGES

(a) The following sums are appropriated in FY 2016 to the Vermont State Colleges:

(1) Construction, renovation, and major maintenance: \$1,400,000.00

(2) Engineering technology laboratories, plan, design, and upgrade:
\$1,000,000.00

(b) The following sums are appropriated in FY 2017 to the Vermont State Colleges:

(1) Construction, renovation, and major maintenance: \$1,400,000.00

(2) Laboratory, plan, design, and upgrade: \$500,000.00

(c) It is the intent of the General Assembly that the amount appropriated in subdivision (b)(2) of this section shall be used as a challenge grant to raise funds to upgrade engineering technology laboratories at the Vermont Technical College. The funds shall only become available after the Vermont Technical College has notified the Chairs of the House Committee on Corrections and Institutions and the Senate Committee on Institutions and the Commissioner of Finance and Management that \$500,000.00 in committed funds has been raised to match the appropriation in subdivision (b)(2) of this section and finance additional costs of comprehensive laboratory improvements.

Appropriation – FY 2016 \$2,400,000.00

Appropriation – FY 2017 \$1,900,000.00

Total Appropriation – Section 10 \$4,300,000.00

Sec. 11. NATURAL RESOURCES

(a) The following sums are appropriated in FY 2016 to the Agency of Natural Resources for the Department of Environmental Conservation for the projects described in this subsection:

(1) the Water Pollution Control Fund, Clean Water State/EPA Revolving Loan Fund (CWSRF) match: \$1,300,000.00

-
- (2) the Water Pollution Control Fund, administrative support – engineering, oversight, and program management: \$300,000.00
- (3) Drinking Water Supply, Drinking Water State Revolving Fund: \$1,750,834.00
- (4) Drinking Water Supply, engineering oversight and project management: \$300,000.00
- (5) EcoSystem restoration and protection: \$3,750,000.00
- (6) Dam safety and hydrology projects: \$538,580.00
- (7) Municipal Pollution Control Grants, principal and interest associated with funding for the Pownal project: \$530,000.00
- (8) Municipal Pollution Control Grants, Waterbury waste treatment facility for phosphorous removal: \$379,929.00
- (9) Municipal Pollution Control Grants, pollution control projects and planning advances for feasibility studies: \$392,258.00
- (b) The following sums are appropriated in FY 2016 to the Agency of Natural Resources for the Department of Forests, Parks and Recreation for the projects described in this subsection:
- (1) Infrastructure rehabilitation, including statewide small scale rehabilitation, wastewater repairs, preventive improvements and upgrades of restrooms and bathhouses, and statewide small-scale road rehabilitation projects: \$3,000,000.00
- (2) Guilford, Sweet Pond: \$90,000.00
- (c) The following sums are appropriated in FY 2016 to the Agency of Natural Resources for the Department of Fish and Wildlife:
- (1) General infrastructure projects: \$1,125,000.00
- (2) Lake Champlain Walleye Association, Inc. to upgrade: \$25,000.00
- (d) The following sums are appropriated in FY 2017 to the Agency of Natural Resources for the Department of Environmental Conservation for the projects described in this subsection:
- (1) the Water Pollution Control Fund for the Clean Water State/EPA Revolving Loan Fund (CWSRF) match: \$1,300,000.00
- (2) the Water Pollution Control Fund, administrative support – engineering, oversight, and program management: \$300,000.00
- (3) the Drinking Water Supply, Drinking Water State Revolving Fund: \$2,538,000.00

(4) the Drinking Water Supply, engineering oversight and project management: \$300,000.00

(5) EcoSystem restoration and protection: \$3,750,000.00

(6) Dam safety and hydrology projects: \$750,000.00

(e) The following sums are appropriated in FY 2017 to the Agency of Natural Resources for the Department of Forests, Parks and Recreation for the projects described in this subsection:

(1) Infrastructure rehabilitation, including statewide small scale rehabilitation, wastewater repairs, preventive improvements and upgrades of restrooms and bathhouses, and statewide small-scale road rehabilitation projects: \$3,000,000.00

(2) Guilford, Sweet Pond: \$405,000.00

(f) The following sums are appropriated in FY 2017 to the Agency of Natural Resources for the Department of Fish and Wildlife:

(1) General infrastructure projects: \$875,000.00

(2) Lake Champlain Walleye Association, Inc. to upgrade: \$25,000.00

Appropriation – FY 2016 \$13,481,601.00

Appropriation – FY 2017 \$13,243,000.00

Total Appropriation – Section 11 \$26,724,601.00

Sec. 12. MILITARY

(a) The following sums are appropriated in FY 2016 to the Department of Military for the projects described in this subsection:

(1) Maintenance, renovations, roof replacements, ADA renovations, and energy upgrades at State armories. To the extent feasible, these funds shall be used to match federal funds: \$750,000.00

(2) Randolph, Vermont Veterans' Memorial Cemetery, agricultural mitigation for the proposed cemetery expansion: \$59,759.00

(b) The sum of \$750,000.00 is appropriated in FY 2017 to the Department of Military for maintenance, renovations, roof replacements, ADA renovations, and energy upgrades at State armories. To the extent feasible, these funds shall be used to match federal funds.

Appropriation – FY 2016 \$809,759.00

Appropriation – FY 2017 \$750,000.00

Total Appropriation – Section 12 \$1,559,759.00

 Sec. 13. PUBLIC SAFETY

(a) The sum of \$300,000.00 is appropriated in FY 2016 to the Department of Buildings and General Services for the State's share of the Vermont Emergency Service Training Facility for site location and foundation construction of the new burn building at the Robert H. Wood Vermont Fire Academy. The Department of Public Safety may accept federal funds to support this project.

(b) The funds appropriated in subsection (a) of this section shall only become available after the Department of Public Safety has notified the Chairs of the House Committee on Corrections and Institutions and the Senate Committee on Institutions of receipt of the federal match for the project.

Total Appropriation – Section 13 \$300,000.00

Sec. 14. AGRICULTURE, FOOD AND MARKETS

(a) The following sums are appropriated in FY 2016 to the Agency of Agriculture, Food and Markets for the projects described in this subsection:

<u>(1) Best Management Practices and Conservation Reserve Enhancement Program:</u>	<u>\$1,752,412.00</u>
<u>(2) Vermont Exposition Center Building, upgrades:</u>	<u>\$200,000.00</u>
<u>(3) Community and nonprofit agricultural water quality projects:</u>	<u>\$250,000.00</u>

(b) The following sums are appropriated in FY 2017 to the Agency of Agriculture, Food and Markets for the projects described in this subsection:

<u>(1) Best Management Practices and Conservation Reserve Enhancement Program:</u>	<u>\$1,800,000.00</u>
<u>(2) Vermont Exposition Center Building, upgrades:</u>	<u>\$115,000.00</u>

(c) On or before January 15, 2016, the Secretary of Agriculture, Food and Markets shall report to the House Committee on Corrections and Institutions and the Senate Committee on Institutions on the projects funded from the appropriation in subdivision (a)(3) of this section.

<u>Appropriation – FY 2016</u>	<u>\$2,202,412.00</u>
<u>Appropriation – FY 2017</u>	<u>\$1,915,000.00</u>
<u>Total Appropriation – Section 14</u>	<u>\$4,117,412.00</u>

Sec. 15. VERMONT RURAL FIRE PROTECTION

(a) The sum of \$125,000.00 is appropriated in FY 2016 to the Department of Public Safety for the Vermont Rural Fire Protection Task Force for the dry hydrant program.

(b) The sum of \$125,000.00 is appropriated in FY 2017 to the Department of Public Safety for the Vermont Rural Fire Protection Task Force for the project described in subsection (a) of this section.

Total Appropriation – Section 15 \$250,000.00

Sec. 16. VERMONT VETERANS' HOME

The sum of \$500,000.00 is appropriated in FY 2016 to the Vermont Veterans' Home for an electronic medical records system. These funds shall be used to match federal funds and shall only become available after the Veterans' Home notifies the Chairs of the House Committee on Corrections and Institutions and the Senate Committee on Institutions and the Commissioner of Finance and Management that the electronic medical records system is in compliance with the criteria for creating and maintaining connectivity established by the Vermont Information Technology Leaders pursuant to 18 V.S.A. § 9352(i).

Total Appropriation – Section 16 \$500,000.00

Sec. 17. VERMONT HISTORICAL SOCIETY

The sum of \$50,000.00 is appropriated in FY 2016 to the Department of Buildings and General Services for the Vermont Historical Society (VHS) for a matching grant to reduce debt at the Vermont History Center in Barre. The funds shall only become available after the VHS notifies the Department that the funds have been matched.

Total Appropriation – Section 17 \$50,000.00

Sec. 18. VERMONT HOUSING AND CONSERVATION BOARD

(a) The following amounts are appropriated in FY 2016 to the Vermont Housing and Conservation Board.

<u>(1) Statewide, water quality improvement projects:</u>	<u>\$2,750,000.00</u>
<u>(2) Housing:</u>	<u>\$1,800,000.00</u>

(b) The following amounts are appropriated in FY 2017 to the Vermont Housing and Conservation Board.

<u>(1) Statewide, water quality improvement projects:</u>	<u>\$1,000,000.00</u>
<u>(2) Housing:</u>	<u>\$1,800,000.00</u>

<u>Appropriation – FY 2016</u>	<u>\$4,550,000.00</u>
<u>Appropriation – FY 2017</u>	<u>\$2,800,000.00</u>
<u>Total Appropriation – Section 18</u>	<u>\$7,350,000.00</u>

Sec. 19. VERMONT INTERACTIVE TECHNOLOGIES

\$220,000.00 is appropriated in FY 2016 to the Vermont State Colleges on behalf of Vermont Interactive Technologies (VIT) for all costs associated with the dissolution of VIT's operations.

<u>Total Appropriation – Section 19</u>	<u>\$220,000.00</u>
---	---------------------

Sec. 20. GENERAL ASSEMBLY

(a) The sum of \$120,000.00 is appropriated in FY 16 to the Office of Legislative Council budget on behalf of the Office of the Secretary of the Senate and the Office of the Clerk of the House for upgrades to the legislative international roll call (IRC) program. All work on the project described in this section shall be under the direction of the Secretary of the Senate, the Clerk of the House, and the Office of the Legislative Council's Deputy Director of Information Technology.

(b) The sum of \$5,000.00 is appropriated in FY 17 to the Sergeant at Arms for security upgrades in the State House.

<u>Appropriation – FY 2016</u>	<u>\$120,000.00</u>
<u>Appropriation – FY 2017</u>	<u>\$5,000.00</u>
<u>Total Appropriation – Section 20</u>	<u>\$125,000.00</u>

* * * Financing this Act * * *

Sec. 21. REALLOCATION OF FUNDS; TRANSFER OF FUNDS

(a) The following sums are reallocated to the Department of Buildings and General Services from prior capital appropriations to defray expenditures authorized in Sec. 2 of this act:

(1) of the amount appropriated in 2010 Acts and Resolves No. 161, Sec. 1 (Bennington State Office Building): \$49,062.60

(2) of the amount appropriated in 2010 Acts and Resolves No. 161, Sec. 16 (Ag various projects): \$352,412.25

(3) of the amount appropriated in 2011 Acts and Resolves No. 40, Sec. 2(b) (State House committee renovations): \$28,702.15

(4) of the amount appropriated in 2011 Acts and Resolves No. 40, Sec. 13 (Public Safety review of State Police facilities): \$5,000.00

(5) of the amount appropriated in 2011 Acts and Resolves No. 40, Sec. 17 (VT Public TV): \$856.00

(6) of the amount appropriated in 2013 Acts and Resolves No. 51, Sec. 2 (BGS engineering staff): \$58,236.66

(7) of the amount appropriated in 2013 Acts and Resolves No. 51, Sec. 2 (133 State Street foundation and parking lot): \$156,642.16

(8) of the amount appropriated in 2013 Acts and Resolves No. 51, Sec. 4 (DOC facilities assessment): \$19,913.12

(9) of the amount appropriated in 2013 Acts and Resolves No. 51, Sec. 18a (E-911): \$9,940.00

(10) of the amount appropriated in 2013 Acts and Resolves No. 51, Sec. 15 (VT Public TV): \$0.21

(b) The following unexpended funds appropriated to the Agency of Natural Resources for capital construction projects are reallocated to the Department of Buildings and General Services to defray expenditures authorized in Sec. 2 of this act:

(1) of the amount appropriated in 2009 Acts and Resolves No. 43, Sec. 14 (Fish and Wildlife): \$0.07

(2) of the amount appropriated in 2010 Acts and Resolves No. 161, Sec. 12 (DEC Water Pollution Control): \$6,981.00

(3) of the amount appropriated in 2011 Acts and Resolves No. 40, Sec. 12, as amended by 2012 Acts and Resolves No. 104, Sec. 8 (drinking water project): \$35,483.32

(4) of the amount appropriated in 2011 Acts and Resolves No. 40, Sec. 12 (Fish and Wildlife, Roxbury): \$128,802.00

(5) of the amount appropriated in 2011 Acts and Resolves No. 40, Sec. 12, as amended by 2012 Acts and Resolves No. 104, Sec 8 (Fish and Wildlife, Roxbury): \$87,204.00

(c) The following sums are reallocated to the Department of Buildings and General Services to defray expenditures authorized in Sec. 2 of this act:

(1) of the proceeds from the sale of property authorized by 1996 Acts and Resolves No. 102, Sec. 1 (Duxbury land sale): \$45,556.36

(2) of the proceeds from the sale of property authorized by 2009 Acts and Resolves No. 43, Sec. 25 (Building 617, Essex): \$7,078.21

(3) of the proceeds from the sale of property authorized by 2009 Acts and Resolves No. 43, Sec. 25 (1193 North Avenue, Burlington): \$353,785.97

(4) of the proceeds from the sale of property authorized by 2011 Acts and Resolves No. 40, Sec. 2, as amended by 2012 Acts and Resolves No. 104, Sec. 3 (121 and 123 South Main Street, Waterbury): \$75,000.00

(5) of the proceeds from the sale of property authorized by 2011 Acts and Resolves No. 40, Sec. 2, as amended by 2012 Acts and Resolves No. 104, Sec. 3 (Ladd Hall, Waterbury): \$228,000.00

Total Reallocations and Transfers – Section 21 \$1,648,656.08

Sec. 22. GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS AND APPROPRIATIONS

(a) The State Treasurer is authorized to issue general obligation bonds in the amount of \$144,000,000.00 for the purpose of funding the appropriations of this act. The State Treasurer, with the approval of the Governor, shall determine the appropriate form and maturity of the bonds authorized by this section consistent with the underlying nature of the appropriation to be funded. The State Treasurer shall allocate the estimated cost of bond issuance or issuances to the entities to which funds are appropriated pursuant to this section and for which bonding is required as the source of funds, pursuant to 32 V.S.A. § 954.

(b) The State Treasurer is further authorized to issue additional general obligation bonds in the amount of \$11,559,096.05 that were previously authorized but unissued under 2014 Acts and Resolves No. 178 for the purpose of funding the appropriations of this act.

Total Revenues – Section 22 \$155,559,096.05

* * * Policy * * *

* * * Buildings and General Services * * *

Sec. 23. LEASING PROPERTY; FAIR MARKET VALUE

(a) It is the intent of the General Assembly that any leases for State-owned space in any State-owned building, structure, or other real property under the jurisdiction of the Commissioner of Buildings and General Services that are in existence prior to the effective date of this act shall be renewed at fair market value by July 1, 2019.

(b) The Commissioner of Buildings and General Services shall evaluate whether to sell any State-owned building, structure, or other real property that is being leased under fair market value.

Sec. 24. AGENCY OF AGRICULTURE, FOOD AND MARKETS AND AGENCY OF NATURAL RESOURCES LABORATORY

Notwithstanding the authority contained in 29 V.S.A. § 164, the Department of Buildings and General Services shall enter into a ground lease

or other similar legal instrument with Vermont Technical College for the purpose of locating the Agency of Agriculture, Food and Markets and Agency of Natural Resources' collaborative laboratory on the Vermont Technical College campus in Randolph, Vermont.

Sec. 25. NAMING OF STATE BUILDINGS AND FACILITIES

On or before January 15, 2016, the Commissioner of Buildings and General Services and the State Librarian shall recommend to the House Committee on Corrections and Institutions and the Senate Committee on Institutions an appropriate State agency or department to name State buildings and facilities.

Sec. 26. 29 V.S.A. § 821(a) is amended to read:

(a) State buildings.

* * *

(13) "Vermont Agriculture and Environmental Laboratory" shall be the name of the State laboratory in Randolph.

* * *

Sec. 27. 2014 Acts and Resolves No. 178, Sec. 37 is amended to read:

Sec. 37. COUNTY COURTHOUSES; PLAN

(a) Pursuant to the restructuring of the Judiciary in 2009 Acts and Resolves No. 154, the Court Administrator ~~and, in consultation with~~ the Commissioner of Buildings and General Services, shall evaluate:

(1) the scope of the State's responsibility for maintaining county courthouses, including Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) compliance and;

(2) whether an emergency fund is necessary for construction or renovation projects at county courthouses;

(3) the current ownership and maintenance responsibilities for each county courthouse; and

(4) parameters for determining the county's share of maintaining county courthouses in the future.

(b) On or before January 15, ~~2015~~ 2016, the Judiciary shall report to the House Committee on Corrections and Institutions and the Senate Committee on Institutions with the results of the evaluation.

Sec. 28. 2014 Acts and Resolves No. 178, Sec. 17 is amended to read:

Sec. 17. 2011 Acts and Resolves No. 40, Sec. 26(c) is amended to read:

(c) The Notwithstanding 29 V.S.A. § 166, the Commissioner of Buildings and General Services is authorized to do any or all of the following with respect to the Vermont health laboratory located at 195 Colchester Avenue in Burlington:

(1) investigate all potential uses of the land and building, including redeveloping the land, provided that it is consistent with existing deed covenants; ~~and~~

(2) enter into agreements and execute any necessary documentation to release or extinguish any of the existing deed covenants with respect to the land; and

(3) convey by quitclaim deed any interest in the building as is with no warranties and no representations as to conditions to the University of Vermont.

Sec. 29. 2013 Acts and Resolves No. 51, Sec. 2, as amended by 2014 Acts and Resolves No. 178, Sec. 1, is amended to read:

Sec. 1. 2013 Acts and Resolves No. 51, Sec. 2 is amended to read:

Sec. 2. STATE BUILDINGS

* * *

(c) The following sums are appropriated in FY 2015:

* * *

(13) Permanent secure residential facility, proposal for siting ~~and design~~
(as described in Sec. 40 of this act): \$50,000.00

Sec. 30. SECURE RESIDENTIAL FACILITY; PLAN FOR SITING AND DESIGN

(a) The Secretary of Human Services shall conduct an examination of the needs of the Agency of Human Services for siting and designing a secure residential facility. The examination shall analyze the operating costs for the facility, including the staffing, size of the facility, the quality of care supported by the structure, and the broadest options available for the management and ownership of the facility.

(b) The funds appropriated in 2013 Acts and Resolves No. 51, Sec. 2, as amended by 2014 Acts and Resolves No. 178, Sec. 1, and Sec. 28 of this act, shall only become available to the Department of Buildings and General Services after the Secretary of Human Services notifies the Commissioner of

Finance and Management that the examination described in subsection (a) of this section is completed.

(c) On or before February 1, 2016, the Secretary of Human Services shall present the results of the examination described in subsection (a) of this section to the House Committees on Appropriations, on Corrections and Institutions, and on Human Services, and the Senate Committees on Appropriations, on Health and Welfare, and on Institutions.

Sec. 31. 29 V.S.A. § 156 is added to read:

§ 156. CITY OF MONTPELIER DISTRICT HEAT PLANT MAINTENANCE RESERVE FUND

(a) There is established a special fund pursuant to 32 V.S.A. chapter 7, subchapter 5 known as the City of Montpelier District Heat Plant Maintenance Reserve Fund.

(b) The Fund shall comprise payments from the City of Montpelier for the City's share of the maintenance of the District Heat Plant.

(c) Monies in the Fund shall be available to the Commissioner of Buildings and General Service for the maintenance of the District Heat Plant upon commencement of the District Heat Plant's operations.

(d) The Commissioner of Finance and Management may draw warrants for disbursements from this Fund in anticipation of receipts. Any remaining balance at the end of the fiscal year shall be carried forward in the Fund.

Sec. 32. LAND TRANSFER; DUXBURY; MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING

(a) The Commissioner of Forests, Parks, and Recreation shall enter into a memorandum of understanding (MOU) with the Town of Duxbury regarding the Town's use of any State-owned parcel in Camel's Hump State Park that may be conveyed to the Town.

(b) On or before January 15, 2016, the Commissioner of Forests, Parks and Recreation shall report to the House Committee on Corrections and Institutions and the Senate Committee on Institutions on the status of the MOU described in subsection (a) of this section.

* * * Education * * *

Sec. 33. SCHOOL CONSTRUCTION AID AWARDS

It is the intent of the General Assembly that the House Committees on Corrections and Institutions and on Education, and the Senate Committees on Institutions and on Education develop a plan to evaluate strategically the

statutory process set forth in 16 V.S.A. § 3448 for awarding State aid for school construction.

Sec. 34. VERMONT INTERACTIVE TECHNOLOGIES

(a) On or before January 15, 2016, the Secretary of Administration and the Executive Director of the Vermont Interactive Technologies (VIT), or its successor entity, shall examine and submit a report to the House Committee on Corrections and Institutions and the Senate Committee on Institutions on the ownership of all VIT property funded in whole or in part by a capital construction act.

(b) During the 2016 legislative session, the General Assembly shall determine the ownership of VIT's property based on the report described in subsection (a) of this section. No State or private entity shall assume ownership of the property until the General Assembly makes this determination.

* * * Information Technology * * *

Sec. 35. JUDICIARY; CASE MANAGEMENT SYSTEM; REPORT

Prior to finalizing vendor selection for the case management system described in Sec. 5 of this act, the Judiciary shall present a report to the House Committee on Corrections and Institutions, the Senate Committee on Institutions, and the Joint Legislative Criminal Justice Oversight Committee established in the Fiscal Year 2016 Appropriations Act. The report shall include a description of the Judiciary's process and rationale for choosing the vendor, whether the Judiciary incorporated any recommendations from the Special Committee on the Utilization of Information Technology in Government established in the Fiscal Year 2016 Appropriations Act, and whether any efforts were made to integrate the case management system with any systems implemented by the Department of State's Attorneys and Sheriffs and the Office of the Defender General. The reporting requirement of this section may be satisfied by providing testimony to the Committees.

Sec. 36. INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY REVIEW

(a) The Executive Branch shall transfer, upon request, one vacant position for use in the Legislative Joint Fiscal Office (JFO) for a two-year staff position, or the JFO shall hire a consultant, to provide support to the General Assembly to conduct independent reviews of State information technology projects and operations.

(b) The Secretary of Administration and the Chief Information Officer shall:

(1) provide to the JFO access to the reviews conducted by Independent Verification and Validation (IVV) firms hired to evaluate the State's current and planned information technology project, as requested; and

(2) ensure that IVV firms' contracts allow the JFO to make requests for information related to the projects that they are reviewing and that such requests are provided to the JFO in a confidential manner.

(c) The JFO shall enter into a memorandum of understanding with the Executive Branch relating to any work conducted by IVV firms that shall protect security and confidentiality.

(d) In fiscal years 2016 and 2017, the JFO is authorized to use up to \$250,000.00 of the amounts appropriated in Sec. 3(b) and (c) of this act to fund activities described in this section.

(e) On or before January 15, 2017, the Secretary of Administration and the JFO shall submit reports to the House Committee on Corrections and Institutions and the Senate Committee on Institutions on the effectiveness of the position described in subsection (a) of this section and whether the process of conducting independent legislative reviews of State information technology projects and operations should be continued.

* * * Judiciary * * *

Sec. 37. LAMOILLE COUNTY COURTHOUSE; MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING; OPERATING AGREEMENT

(a) The Department of Buildings and General Services and the Lamoille County side judges, in consultation with the Judiciary, shall enter into a Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) regarding the construction, operation, and maintenance of the Lamoille County Courthouse. The MOU shall establish:

(1) the procedures for the operation of the Courthouse and the division of responsibilities between the State and the County; and

(2) the legal framework for ensuring that the State maintains an ownership interest in the new additions to the Courthouse, and receives a percentage of the sale price, or value in the building, equal to the percentage of capital funding appropriated to the Courthouse in the event the County decides to sell the building or to cease operations of the building as a Courthouse, or the State ceases to use the Courthouse for Superior Court functions.

(b) Any amounts repaid to the State under subsection (a) of this section shall not be in excess of the amount of the original State capital appropriation, and shall be appropriated to future capital construction acts.

(c) The Judiciary and the Lamoille County side judges shall enter into an operating agreement regarding the internal functions and use of space within the Lamoille County Courthouse.

(d) The MOU described in subsection (a) of this section and the operating agreement described in subsection (b) of this section shall be executed prior to the State's occupancy of the Courthouse.

* * * Military * * *

Sec. 38. DEPARTMENT OF MILITARY; CEMETERY EXPANSION PROJECT

The Department of Military may accept federal grants, gifts, or donations to support the cemetery expansion project at the Vermont Veterans' Memorial Cemetery in Randolph, Vermont.

* * * Natural Resources * * *

Sec. 39. 24 V.S.A. § 4753a(e) is amended to read:

(e) Loan forgiveness; drinking water.

(1) Notwithstanding any other provision of law regarding loan forgiveness, upon the award of a loan from the Vermont Environmental Protection Agency Drinking Water State Revolving Fund (DWSRF), the Secretary of Natural Resources, in a manner that is consistent with federal grant provisions, may forgive up to 100 percent of a loan if the award is made for a project on the priority list and the project is capitalized, at least in part, from funds derived from a federal DWSRF capitalization grant that includes provisions authorizing loan forgiveness. Such loan forgiveness shall be based on the loan value, but funds to be forgiven shall only consist of federal funds, except where the loan is used as a match to other federal grants requiring nonfederal funds as a match.

(2) Notwithstanding any other provision of law regarding loan forgiveness, upon the award of a loan from the Vermont Drinking Water State Revolving Loan Fund, the Secretary of Natural Resources may provide loan forgiveness for preliminary engineering and final design costs when a municipality undertakes such engineering on behalf of a household that has been disconnected involuntarily from a public water supply system for reasons other than nonpayment of fees, provided it is not the same municipality that is disconnecting the household.

Sec. 40. 24 V.S.A. § 4755(a) is amended to read:

(a) Except as provided by subsection (c) of this section, the bond bank may make loans to a municipality on behalf of the ~~state~~ State for one or more of the

purposes set forth in section 4754 of this chapter. Each of such loans shall be made subject to the following conditions and limitations:

(1) no loan shall be made for any purpose permitted under this chapter other than from the revolving fund in which the same purpose is included;

(2) the total amount of loan out of a particular revolving fund shall not exceed the balance of that fund;

(3) the loan shall be evidenced by a municipal bond, payable by the municipality over a term not to exceed ~~20~~ 30 years; or the projected useful life of the project, which is less, except:

(A) and without there shall be no deferral of payment except as provided, unless authorized by 10 V.S.A. §§ 1624(b) and § 1624a, or;

(B) the term of the loan shall not exceed 20 years when required by 10 V.S.A. § 1624(b); and

(C) the loan may be evidenced by any other permitted debt instrument payable as permitted by chapter 53 of this title;

* * *

Sec. 41. 24 V.S.A. § 4756 is amended to read:

§ 4756. ELIGIBILITY CERTIFICATION

(a) No construction loan or loan for the purchase of land or conservation easements to a municipality shall be made under this chapter, nor shall any part of any revolving fund which is designated for project construction be expended under section 4757 of this title, until such time as:

* * *

(b) The bond bank may make loans to a municipality for the preparation of final engineering plans and specifications subject to the following conditions and limitations:

(1) The loan shall be evidenced by a note, executed by the municipality, payable over a term not to exceed ~~20~~ 30 years at zero percent interest in equal annual payments.

(2) ~~The secretary of natural resources~~ Secretary of Natural Resources shall have certified to the bond bank that the project:

(A) has priority for award of a planning loan;

(B) for which final engineering plans are to be prepared, is described in a preliminary engineering plan or facilities plan that has been approved by the ~~secretary~~ Secretary; and

(C) is in conformance with applicable ~~state~~ State and federal law and regulations promulgated thereunder.

* * *

* * * Public Safety * * *

Sec. 42. TRAINING CENTER; FINDINGS, PURPOSE, AND INTENT

(a) The General Assembly finds that the Robert H. Wood, Jr. Criminal Justice and Fire Service Training Center of Vermont (the Training Center) is an asset to the State because it provides multiple agencies with the space to train people who protect the lives of Vermonters. These agencies presently include the Vermont Criminal Justice Training Council, the Vermont Fire Service Training Council, the Department of Public Safety, the Department of Corrections, and the Department of Motor Vehicles.

(b) The purpose of Sec. 43 of this act is to create a committee to govern the access to, the use and future needs of, and the capital investments in Training Center facilities so that agencies continue to enjoy access to it and so that members of the public may also be able to use the Training Center. While this committee is established to oversee Training Center facilities, it is the General Assembly's intent that this committee shall not have jurisdiction over any training content provided at the Training Center.

Sec. 43. 29 V.S.A. chapter 19 is added to read:

CHAPTER 19. TRAINING CENTER GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE

§ 841. COMMITTEE CREATION

(a) Creation. There is created the Training Center Governance Committee to manage access to the facilities of the Robert H. Wood Jr. Criminal Justice and Fire Service Training Center of Vermont (Training Center), located in Pittsford, Vermont.

(b) Membership. The Committee shall be composed of the following eight members:

(1) the Executive Director of the Vermont Criminal Justice Training Council;

(2) the Chair of the Vermont Fire Service Training Council;

(3) an employee of the Department of Buildings and General Services, appointed by the Commissioner of the Department;

(4) the Chair of the Vermont Criminal Justice Training Council;

(5) the Chief Training Officer of the Vermont Fire Academy;

(6) an employee of the Department of Corrections, appointed by the Commissioner of the Department;

(7) the Director of the Division of Fire Safety; and

(8) a member of the State Police, appointed by the Commissioner of Public Safety.

(c) Powers and duties. The Committee shall:

(1) Use and access. Govern the use of and access to the Training Center. In so governing, the Committee shall take into consideration the needs of the State's various agencies and members of the public in using the Training Center's facilities.

(2) Future needs and capital investments.

(A) plan for the future capital needs of the Training Center;

(B) submit a capital program plan to the Department of Buildings and General Services for the capital construction bill set forth in 32 V.S.A. § 701a and report to the General Assembly as necessary on any recommended legislative action for capital needs; and

(C) on an ongoing basis, monitor the effectiveness of any capital investments related to training needs.

(3) Performance analysis. Establish policies to ensure the facility training needs of those persons that use the Training Center are cost-effectively met, and establish performance measures for assessing on an ongoing basis how well those needs are met.

(4) Budget and rates.

(A) manage the operating budget for the facilities at the Training Center;

(B) set the rates for use of space at the Training Center;

(C) enter into and administer new contracts on behalf of the Training Center regarding the operations of the Training Center; and

(D) develop approaches to budgeting and paying for space that encourage collaboration among those persons that use the Training Center, and address future major maintenance needs.

(d) Meetings.

(1) The Committee shall meet no fewer than four times per year.

(2) A majority of the membership shall constitute a quorum.

(3) The Committee shall elect a chair and may adopt rules of procedure.

(e) Reimbursement. Members of the Committee who are not employees of the State and who are not otherwise compensated or reimbursed for their attendance shall be entitled to per diem compensation and reimbursement of expenses pursuant to 32 V.S.A. § 1010.

Sec. 44. INITIAL MEETING OF GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE;
TRANSITIONAL PROVISION

(a) The Commissioner of Buildings and General Services shall call the initial meeting of the Training Center Governance Committee set forth in Sec. 43 of this act, to be held on or before September 30, 2015.

(b) The Training Center Governance Committee shall be responsible for requests for use of the Robert H. Wood, Jr. Criminal Justice and Fire Service Training Center of Vermont made on and after the initial Committee meeting, but shall permit any scheduled use of the Training Center made prior to that date.

(c) The Training Center Governance Committee shall have access to any contracts regarding the operations of the Training Center that are in existence prior to the date of the initial Committee meeting.

Sec. 45. TRAINING CENTER GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE; REPORT

On or before February 1, 2016, the Training Center Governance Committee set forth in Sec. 43 of this act shall report to the General Assembly regarding the operation of its powers and duties to date and recommend any further legislative action it finds necessary.

* * * Security * * *

Sec. 46. STATE HOUSE SECURITY

(a) The Sergeant at Arms, in consultation with the Chair of the Capitol Complex Working Group established in 2014 Acts and Resolves No. 178, Sec. 26, is authorized to create a security and safety protocol for the State House, conduct trainings for the State House and One Baldwin Street, and install security cameras at the exterior entrances of the State House. The Sergeant at Arms may retain consultant services to complete the work described in this subsection. Any consultants retained pursuant to this subsection shall be hired by the Joint Fiscal Office and shall work through the Joint Fiscal Office under the direction of the Sergeant at Arms and the Chair of the Working Group.

(b) The Sergeant at Arms is authorized to use funds appropriated in 2013 Acts and Resolves No. 51, Sec. 2(c)(17), as amended by 2014 Acts and

Resolves No. 178, Sec. 1 and Sec. 20(b) of this act, to directly conduct the work described in subsection (a) of this section or retain consultant services through the Joint Fiscal Office to conduct the work described in subsection (a) of this section.

(c) Prior to the installation, the Sergeant at Arms, in consultation with the Chair of the Working Group, shall establish a policy for the use of the security cameras described in subsection (a) of this section. The policy shall include requirements on limiting access rights to the camera and video feed, and retaining video feed for a minimum of seven days and a maximum of 30 days.

* * * Effective Date * * *

Sec. 47. EFFECTIVE DATE

This act shall take effect on passage.

And that the bill ought to pass in concurrence with such proposal of amendment.

Senator Kitchel, for the Committee on Appropriations, to which the bill was referred, reported recommending that the Senate propose to the House that the bill be amended as recommended by the Committee on Institutions with the following amendments thereto:

First: In Sec. 20, General Assembly, in the last sentence of subsection (a), by striking out the following: "Office of the Legislative Council's Deputy Director of Information Technology" and inserting in lieu thereof the following: Office of the Legislative Council

Second: In Sec. 32, Land Transfer; Duxbury; Memorandum of Understanding, in subsection (a), after "The Commissioner of Forests, Parks, and Recreation", by striking out the word "shall" and inserting in lieu thereof the word may

Third: In Sec. 46, State House Security, in subsection (c), after "retaining video feed", by striking out the following: "for a minimum of seven days and a maximum of 30 days"

And that the bill ought to pass in concurrence with such proposals of amendment.

Thereupon, the bill was read the second time by title only pursuant to Rule 43, and the recommendation of proposal of amendment of the Committee on Institutions was amended as recommended by the Committee on Appropriations.

Thereupon, pending the question, Shall the Senate propose to the House that the bill be amended as recommended by the Committee on Institutions as

amended?, Senators Flory, Balint, Mazza, McAllister and Rodgers moved to amend the proposal of amendment of the Committee on Institutions, as amended, as follows:

First: In Sec. 5, Judiciary, in subsection (c), after “Appropriation – FY 2017”, by striking out the following: “\$150,000.00” and inserting in lieu thereof the following: \$5,150,000.00

Second: In Sec. 7, Grant Programs, in subsection (f), after “FY”, by striking out the following: “2016” and inserting in lieu thereof the following: 2017

Third: In Sec. 10, Vermont State Colleges, in subdivision (b)(2), by striking out the following: “Laboratory” and inserting in lieu thereof the following: Engineering technology laboratories

Fourth: In Sec. 11, Natural Resources, in subdivisions (c)(2) and (f)(2), after the following: “to upgrade” by inserting the following: and repair the walleye rearing, restoration, and stocking infrastructure

Fifth: In Sec. 18, Vermont Housing and Conservation Board, in subdivision (a)(1), by striking out the following: “\$2,750,000.00” and inserting in lieu thereof the following: \$1,500,000.00, and adding a subdivision (a)(3) to read as follows:

(3) Statewide, water quality improvement or other conservation and agriculture projects: \$1,250,000.00

Which was agreed to.

Thereupon, the proposal of amendment recommended by the Committee on Institutions, as amended, was agreed to.

Thereupon, third reading of the bill was ordered.

Adjournment

On motion of Senator Campbell, the Senate adjourned until one o'clock and fifteen minutes in the afternoon.

Called to Order

The Senate was called to order by the President *pro tempore*.

Recess

On motion of Senator Baruth the Senate recessed until one o'clock and thirty-five minutes.

Called to Order

The Senate was called to order by the President *pro tempore*.

Recess

On motion of Senator Baruth the Senate recessed until one o'clock and fifty-five minutes in the afternoon.

Called to Order

The Senate was called to order by the President *pro tempore*.

Recess

The Chair declared a recess two o'clock and fifteen minutes in the afternoon.

Message from the House No. 63

A message was received from the House of Representatives by Ms. Melissa Kucserik, its Second Assistant Clerk, as follows:

Mr. President:

I am directed to inform the Senate that:

The House has passed a House bill of the following title:

H. 508. An act relating to approval of amendments to the charter of the Town of Middlebury.

In the passage of which the concurrence of the Senate is requested.

The House has considered Senate proposal of amendment to House bill entitled:

H. 361. An act relating to making amendments to education funding, education spending, and education governance.

And has refused to concur therein and asks for a Committee of Conference upon the disagreeing votes of the two Houses;

The Speaker appointed as members of such Committee on the part of the House:

Rep. Sharpe of Bristol
Rep. Juskiewicz of Cambridge
Rep. Donovan of Burlington.

Pursuant to the request of the Senate for a Committee of Conference upon the disagreeing votes of the two Houses on Senate bill of the following title:

S. 9. An act relating to improving Vermont's system for protecting children from abuse and neglect.

The Speaker has appointed as members of such committee on the part of the House:

Rep. Pugh of South Burlington
Rep. Grad of Moretown
Rep. Burditt of West Rutland.

The House has considered the report of the Committee of Conference upon the disagreeing votes of the two Houses on Senate bill of the following title:

S. 115. An act relating to expungement of convictions based on conduct that is no longer criminal.

And has adopted the same on its part.

The House has adopted House concurrent resolutions of the following titles:

H.C.R. 149. House concurrent resolution honoring the Essex High School Air Force Junior Reserve Officer Training Corps unit on its exemplary history.

H.C.R. 150. House concurrent resolution honoring Dave Gram for 30 years of journalism excellence.

H.C.R. 151. House concurrent resolution in memory of Glenn Tosi of Montpelier.

H.C.R. 152. House concurrent resolution congratulating Jacobi Lafferty and Jamison Evans on their New England regional victories in the Elks National Hoop Shoot Free Throw Program.

H.C.R. 153. House concurrent resolution honoring Steven E. Jeffrey for his exemplary leadership of the Vermont League of Cities and Towns.

H.C.R. 154. House concurrent resolution in memory of Seargent Kendall Wild.

H.C.R. 155. House concurrent resolution congratulating Ben Morehouse of Concord on completing a winter season dogsled ascent of Mount Washington.

H.C.R. 156. House concurrent resolution congratulating Kenneth Coonradt on being named the Shaftsbury Historical Society's Ordinary Hero for 2015.

H.C.R. 157. House concurrent resolution honoring Orwell firefighter, first responder, and revered former fire chief Louis Hall.

In the adoption of which the concurrence of the Senate is requested.

Called to Order

The Senate was called to order by the President *pro tempore*.

**Rules Suspended; Proposal of Amendment Amended; Bill Passed in
Concurrence with Proposals of Amendment; Bill Messaged**

H. 492.

Pending entry on the Calendar for action tomorrow, on motion of Senator Baruth, the rules were suspended and House bill entitled:

An act relating to capital construction and State bonding.

Was placed on all remaining stages of its passage in concurrence with proposal of amendment forthwith.

Thereupon, pending third reading of the bill, Senator Balint, Flory, Mazza and Rodgers moved that the Senate propose to the House that the bill be amended as follows:

First: By inserting Secs. 24a through 24f to read as follows:

Sec. 24a. 29 V.S.A. § 161(b) is amended to read:

(b) Each contract awarded under this section for any State project with a construction cost exceeding \$100,000.00 and which is authorized or funded in whole or in part by a capital construction act pursuant to 32 V.S.A. § 701a; ~~including such a project of the University of Vermont and State Agricultural College and of the Vermont State Colleges,~~ shall provide that all construction employees working on the project shall be paid no less than the mean prevailing wage published periodically by the Vermont Department of Labor in its occupational employment and wage survey plus an additional fringe benefit of 42 and one-half percent of wage, as calculated by the current Vermont prevailing wage survey. As used in this section, "fringe benefits" means benefits, including paid vacations and holidays, sick leave, employer contributions and reimbursements to health insurance and retirement benefits, and similar benefits that are incidents of employment.

Sec. 24b. 29 V.S.A. § 161(b) is amended to read:

(b) Each contract awarded under this section for any State project with a construction cost exceeding \$100,000.00 ~~and~~ or a construction project with a construction cost exceeding \$200,000.00 which is authorized ~~or~~ and is at least 50 percent funded in whole or in part by a capital construction act pursuant to 32 V.S.A. § 701a shall provide that all construction employees working on the project shall be paid no less than the mean prevailing wage published periodically by the Vermont Department of Labor in its occupational employment and wage survey plus an additional fringe benefit of 42 and one-half percent of wage, as calculated by the current Vermont prevailing wage survey. As used in this section, "fringe benefits" means benefits, including paid vacations and holidays, sick leave, employer contributions and

reimbursements to health insurance and retirement benefits, and similar benefits that are incidents of employment.

Sec. 24c. STATE CONSTRUCTION PROJECTS; CONTRACTS SUBJECT TO STATE PREVAILING WAGE;

(a) Notwithstanding Sec. 24a of this act, the following contracts shall remain subject to the mean prevailing wage published periodically by the Vermont Department of Labor in its occupational employment and wage survey:

(1) contracts for State construction projects executed prior to July 1, 2016;

(2) any change orders or amendments to contracts for State construction projects executed prior to July 1, 2016; and

(3) contracts for State construction projects that result from instructions to bidders posted by the State of Vermont prior to July 1, 2016.

(b) On or before July 1, 2016, the Department of Buildings and General Services shall amend all bid packets and contracts to include mean prevailing wage rates published periodically by the Vermont Department of Labor in its occupational employment and wage survey plus an additional fringe benefit of 42 and one-half percent of wage, as calculated by the current Vermont prevailing wage survey.

Sec. 24d. PREVAILING WAGE; UNIVERSITY OF VERMONT AND VERMONT STATE COLLEGES

Notwithstanding any other provision of law, the University of Vermont and State Agricultural College and the Vermont State Colleges shall pay no less than the prevailing wage determinations in accordance with the requirements of 29 V.S.A. § 161(b) for any new construction or major renovation project that receives funding in any capital construction act.

Sec. 24e. PREVAILING WAGE; AGENCY OF AGRICULTURE, FOOD AND MARKETS AND AGENCY OF NATURAL RESOURCES LABORATORY

Notwithstanding any other provision of law, prevailing wage determinations for the construction of the Agency of Agriculture, Food and Markets and the Agency of Natural Resources laboratory shall be made in accordance with the requirements of 29 V.S.A. § 161(b).

Sec. 24f. PREVAILING WAGE; AUDITS

The Commissioner of Labor, in consultation with the Commissioner of Buildings and General Services, shall conduct random audits of any contractor

subject to 29 V.S.A. § 161(b) in sufficient number to ensure compliance with statutory requirements.

Second: By striking out Sec. 47, Effective Date, and the Effective Date reader assistance heading, and inserting in lieu thereof the following:

* * * Effective Dates * * *

Sec. 47. EFFECTIVE DATES

This act shall take effect on passage, except that:

(1) Sec. 24b shall take effect on July 1, 2017; and

(2) Sec. 24d shall take effect on July 1, 2016.

Which was agreed to.

Thereupon, the bill was read the third time and passed in concurrence with proposal of amendment on a roll call, Yeas 28, Nays 0.

Senator Flory having demanded the yeas and nays, they were taken and are as follows:

Roll Call

Those Senators who voted in the affirmative were: Ashe, Ayer, Balint, Baruth, Benning, Bray, Campion, Collamore, Cummings, Degree, Doyle, Flory, Kitchel, Lyons, MacDonald, Mazza, McCormack, Mullin, Nitka, Pollina, Rodgers, Sears, Sirotkin, Snelling, Starr, Westman, White, Zuckerman.

Those Senators who voted in the negative were: None.

Those Senators absent or not voting were: Campbell (presiding), McAllister.

Thereupon, on motion of Senator Baruth, the rules were suspended, and the bill was ordered messaged to the House forthwith.

Rules Suspended; Bill Passed in Concurrence with Proposal of Amendment; Bill Messaged

H. 480.

Pending entry on the Calendar for action tomorrow, on motion of Senator Baruth, the rules were suspended and House bill entitled:

An act relating to making miscellaneous technical and other amendments to education laws.

Was placed on all remaining stages of its passage in concurrence with proposal of amendment forthwith.

Thereupon, the bill was read the third time and passed in concurrence with proposal of amendment.

Thereupon, on motion of Senator Baruth, the rules were suspended and the bill was ordered messaged to the House forthwith.

Bill Referred to Committee on Finance

H. 497.

House bill of the following title, appearing on the Calendar for notice, and affecting the revenue of the state, under the rule was referred to the Committee on Finance:

An act relating to approval of amendments to the charter of the Town of Colchester.

Committee of Conference Appointed

S. 102.

An act relating to forfeiture of property associated with animal fighting and certain regulated drug possession, sale, and trafficking violations.

Was taken up. Pursuant to the request of the House, the President announced the appointment of

Senator Ashe
Senator Sears
Senator Benning

as members of the Committee of Conference on the part of the Senate to consider the disagreeing votes of the two Houses.

House Concurrent Resolutions

The following joint concurrent resolutions having been placed on the consent calendar on the preceding legislative day, and no Senator having requested floor consideration as provided by the Joint Rules of the Senate and House of Representatives, were severally adopted in concurrence:

By Representative Myers and others,

H.C.R. 149.

House concurrent resolution honoring the Essex High School Air Force Junior Reserve Officer Training Corps unit on its exemplary history.

By All Members of the House,

By All Members of the Senate,

H.C.R. 150.

House concurrent resolution honoring Dave Gram for 30 years of journalism excellence.

By Representative Donovan and others,

H.C.R. 151.

House concurrent resolution in memory of Glenn Tosi of Montpelier.

By Representative Brennan and others,

By Senator Mazza,

H.C.R. 152.

House concurrent resolution congratulating Jacobi Lafferty and Jamison Evans on their New England regional victories in the Elks National Hoop Shoot Free Throw Program.

By Representative Manwaring and others,

By Senators Ashe, Ayer, Balint, Baruth, Benning, Bray, Campbell, Champion, Collamore, Cummings, Degree, Doyle, Flory, Kitchel, Lyons, MacDonald, Mazza, McAllister, McCormack, Mullin, Nitka, Pollina, Rodgers, Sears, Sirotkin, Starr, Westman, White and Zuckerman,

H.C.R. 153.

House concurrent resolution honoring Steven E. Jeffrey for his exemplary leadership of the Vermont League of Cities and Towns.

By Representative Russell and others,

By Senators Collamore, Flory and Mullin,

H.C.R. 154.

House concurrent resolution in memory of Sargent Kendall Wild.

By Representative Quimby,

H.C.R. 155.

House concurrent resolution congratulating Ben Morehouse of Concord on completing a winter season dogsled ascent of Mount Washington.

By Representative Miller,

By Senators Campion and Sears,

H.C.R. 156.

House concurrent resolution congratulating Kenneth Coonradt on being named the Shaftsbury Historical Society's Ordinary Hero for 2015.

By Representative Eastman,

H.C.R. 157.

House concurrent resolution honoring Orwell firefighter, first responder, and revered former fire chief Louis Hall.

Adjournment

On motion of Senator Baruth, the Senate adjourned, to reconvene on Tuesday, May 11, 2015, at eleven o'clock in the forenoon pursuant to J.R.S. 27.